Bergische Universität Wuppertal

Fachbereich Mathematik und Naturwissenschaften

Institut für Mathematik



On the sheaf cohomology of some p-adic period domains with coefficients in certain line bundles

Dissertation

zur Erlangung des akademischen Grades des Doktors in Naturwissenschaften Dr. rer. nat

eingereicht von

Christoph Spenke

im November 2022

And ideas are bullet proof. V for Vendetta

Contents

1	1 Introduction 3				
	1.1	Notations	5		
	1.2	Acknowledgements	6		
2	Pre	liminaries	7		
	2.1	Split reductive groups	7		
	2.2	The BGG categories \mathcal{O} and $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$	12		
	2.3	The category of locally analytic representations	14		
	2.4	The functor \mathcal{F}_P^G	15		
	2.5	Period domains	20		
		2.5.1 Filtered isocrystals	21		
		2.5.2 Slope homomorphism and Newton map	22		
		2.5.3 Parameterization of weakly admissible filtrations on isocrystals	23		
		2.5.4 Existence of weakly admissible filtrations	23		
		2.5.5 Geometric invariant theory	24		
		$2.5.6 \text{Synopsis} \dots \dots$	24		
3	Coh	nomological computations	25		
	3.1	Setup	25		
	3.2	Geometrical properties of the complement of \mathscr{F}^{wa}	26		
	3.3	Algebraic local cohomology	28		
	3.4	Analytic local cohomology	34		
	3.5	Results	38		
	3.6	Outlook to the parabolic case	48		
A	Apr	pendix	51		
	A.1	Code for composition factors	51		
	A.2	Distribution types	56		
Re	efere	nces	62		

1 Introduction

The origin of period domains lies in the work of Griffiths 15, 16. He introduced them as certain open subspaces of generalized flag varities over \mathbb{C} which parametrize polarized \mathbb{R} -Hodge structures of a given type. Afterwards, Rapoport and Zink 51 as well as Rapoport 48 introduced period domains over finite and local fields. Especially the case over *p*-adic fields is of particular interest for this thesis.

Let p be a prime and $K = \mathbb{Q}_p$. Given a reductive group \mathbf{G} over K, a period domain over K parametrizes weakly admissible filtrations on a \mathbf{G} -isocrystal of fixed type. It is an open admissible rigid-analytic subset of a generalized flag manifold \mathscr{F} (cf. section 2.5). The prototype for a *p*-adic period domain over K is Drinfeld's upper half space $\Omega^{(n+1)}$, which is the complement of all K-rational hyperplanes in the projective space \mathbb{P}_{K}^{n} , i.e.

$$\Omega^{(n+1)} = \mathbb{P}_K^n \setminus \bigcup_{H \subsetneq K^{n+1}} \mathbb{P}(H)$$

The same definition applies to arbitrary fields. In the *p*-adic case it arises from the trivial GL_{n+1} -isocrystal inside the projective space $\mathscr{F} = \mathbb{P}_K^n$.

Given an appropriate cohomology theory, it is a natural problem to determine the cohomology groups for period domains. The starting point is the work of Schneider and Stuhler [55]. They computed the cohomology groups of $\Omega^{(n+1)}$ in the *p*-adic case for "good" cohomology theories. This includes the étale cohomology with torsion coefficients, not including *p*-torsion, and the de Rham cohomology. So far, the only results for coherent sheaf cohomology are known for Drinfeld's upper half space (over *p*-adic fields and finite fields). After the work of Schneider and Stuhler, it was Schneider again, together with Teitelbaum, who made the beginning and considered at first coefficients in the canonical bundle [56]. Shortly aftwards, Pohlkamp [46] computed the sheaf cohomology with respect to the structure sheaf. Finally, Orlik was able to generalize these results to arbitrary GL_n -equivariant vector bundles on Drinfeld's upper half space over *p*-adic fields [39]. Moreover, he could apply his methods to compute its pro-étale cohomology [42] and the coherent sheaf cohomology of $\Omega^{(n+1)}$ in the case of finite fields [38]. It was Kuschkowitz, a student of Orlik, who computed the rigid cohomology of Drinfeld's upper halfspace over finite fields with similar methods [31].

The goal of this thesis is to investigate the coherent sheaf cohomology of period domains over *p*-adic fields, other than $\Omega^{(n+1)}$. Let **G** be a split connected reductive group over *K* with split maximal torus **T**. Further let **B** \supset **T** a Borel subgroup of **G** associated to a cocharacter $\mu \in X_*(\mathbf{G})$ defined over *K*. Then, we consider period domains \mathscr{F}^{wa} which parametrize weakly admissible filtrations of the trivial **G**-isocrystal inside the complete flag variety $\mathscr{F} := \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{B}$. Thereafter, we study the sheaf cohomology of these spaces with respect to the restriction of a homogeneous line bundle $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda} :=$ $\mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \otimes \omega_{\mathscr{F}}$ on \mathscr{F} . Here, $\omega_{\mathscr{F}}$ denotes the canonical bundle on \mathscr{F} and \mathcal{L}_{λ} the line bundle associated to a dominant weight $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})$ (cf. section 3.1). For this purpose we use the techniques of 39 and the theory developed in 44. Under the assumption of a hypothesis concerning the density of some local cohomology groups (cf. Assumption 3.19), we prove the following result.

Theorem 1.1 (Theorem 3.28). Let $i_0 := \dim \mathscr{F} - |\Delta|$. The homology of the (chain) complex

$$C_{\bullet}: \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w) = \dim Y_{\emptyset}}} V_B^G(w) \quad \dots \quad \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w) = 1}} V_B^G(w) \quad V_B^G(\lambda)$$

starting in degree i_0 coincides with $H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$, i.e. $H_i(C_{\bullet}) = H^i(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$.

Here, Δ is the set of simple roots of the root system of **G** with respect to **B**. Further, Ω_{\emptyset} is a subset of the Weyl group W of **G** defined by some numerical conditions (cf. (3.5)) and Y_{\emptyset} a union of Schubert cells in \mathscr{F} indexed by Ω_{\emptyset} which is closed in \mathscr{F} (cf. subsection 3.2). Moreover, $V_B^G(w)$ are twisted generalized locally analytic Steinberg representations (cf. Definition 2.38) and $H^i(\mathscr{F}^{wa}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$ denotes the strong dual of $H^i(\mathscr{F}^{wa}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$.

In order to compute the Jordan-Hölder factors for some homology groups of the latter complex we prove, under the Assumption 2.26, a generalization of 43, Theorem 4.6].

Theorem 1.2 (Theorem 2.40). Fix $w, v \in W$ and let $I_0 := I(w)$ respectively I := I(v)(cf. (2.6)). For a subset $J \subset \Delta$ with $J \subset I$, let $v_{P_J}^{P_I}$ be the generalized smooth Steinberg representation of L_{P_I} . Then, the multiplicity of the irreducible G-representation $\mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_I}^{P_I})$ in $V_B^G(w)$ is

$$\sum_{\substack{w' \in W \\ \operatorname{supp}(w') = J \cap I_0}} (-1)^{\ell(w') + |J \cap I_0|} m(w'w, v)$$

and we obtain in this way all the Jordan-Hölder factors of $V_B^G(w)$.

Then, we will make use of the fact that the morphism $p_{w',w}: V_B^G(w') \to V_B^G(w)$ in the differentials of C_{\bullet} is surjective for $w', w \in W$ with $w' \leq w$ (cf. Lemma [3.30]).

The thesis is divided into two parts. The first half is about the main ingredients that we will use afterwards. In detail, this starts in Section 2.1 with some basics of a split reductive group **G** over a finite extension of \mathbb{Q}_p . We then recall the BGG category \mathcal{O} for the *p*-adic case in Section 2.2 and locally analytic representations in Section 2.3 which are related by the functor \mathcal{F}_p^G in Section 2.4. In this section we also prove Theorem 1.2. Last but not least, we give an overview of *p*-adic period domains in Section 2.5.

In the second half, we first introduce our setup in Section 3.1. This includes the period domain \mathscr{F}^{wa} inside the complete flag variety \mathscr{F} over K and the line bundle \mathcal{E}_{λ} on \mathscr{F} associated to a dominant character λ of \mathbf{G} with respect to the Borel pair (\mathbf{T}, \mathbf{B}) . In the next section, we make some geometric observations for the complement Y of \mathscr{F}^{wa} in \mathscr{F}^{ad} . In particular, (generalized) Schubert cells and unions of Schubert varieties will appear there. Then, in Section 3.3, we determine the algebraic local cohomology groups of \mathscr{F} with support in these (locally) closed subsets and coefficients in \mathcal{E}_{λ} . We relate them to analytic local cohomology groups of \mathscr{F}^{rig} in Section 3.4. In Section 3.5, we use this relation to deduce Theorem 1.1. For this we also use Orlik's fundamental complex (cf. [11], Section 6.2.2]) and a resulting spectral sequence. Moreover, we determine the Jordan-Hölder factors of the dual of $H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\text{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ in examples with the help of the computer. In the last section we explain why our strategy does not automatically transfer to the general parabolic case.

In the Appendix A we list the code we use to determine the Jordan-Hölder factors of the terms in the chain complexes in the examples given. The Jordan-Hölder factors can also be found in the appendix.

1.1 Notations

Let p be a prime and K a finite extensions of \mathbb{Q}_p . Further let L be a complete extension of \mathbb{Q}_p with $K \subset L$. We let \mathcal{O}_K and \mathcal{O}_L , respectively, be the ring of integers of K and L, respectively. Moreoever, let $| \ |$ be the absolute value of K and L, respectively, such that $|p| = p^{-1}$.

We use bold letters for algebraic group schemes over K, e.g. **G**, **B**. The corresponding groups of K-valued points are denoted by normal letters, e.g. G, B and the associated Lie algebras by Gothic letters, e.g. \mathfrak{g} , \mathfrak{b} . We write $U(\mathfrak{h})$ for the universal enveloping algebra of a Lie algebra \mathfrak{h} over K.

We consider L as the field of coefficients. The base change of a K-vector space or a scheme over K to L is indicated by L in the subscript, e.g. $\mathfrak{g}_L = \mathfrak{g} \otimes_K L$. We make an exception when considering a universal enveloping algebra, i.e. we will write $U(\mathfrak{h})$ for $U(\mathfrak{h})_L \cong U(\mathfrak{h}_L)$.

We denote by $\operatorname{Rep}_{L}^{\infty, \operatorname{adm}}(H)$ the category of smooth admissible representations of a locally profinite group H on L-vector spaces, as in [10], Section 2.1].

For a locally convex L-vector space V, we denote by V' the strong dual, i.e. the L-vector space of continuous linear forms equipped with the strong topology of bounded convergence.

For an algebraic variety X over K, we write X^{rig} for the rigid analytic variety and by X^{ad} the adic space attached to X, respectively. If \mathcal{E} is a sheaf on such a variety X, we also write \mathcal{E} for the associated sheaf on X^{rig} , X^{ad} and its restriction to any subspace, respectively.

1.2 Acknowledgements

My biggest thanks goes to Sascha Orlik. First of all, he gave me the opportunity to start this PhD. But above all he chose this multifaceted topic, which somehow miraculously connects areas of mathematics that at first glance do not seem to be in contact with each other - wonderful. Moreover, he actively mentored me throughout the process.

I would also like to thank Thomas Hudson, to whom I could not only ask mathematical questions, but who also supported me with his experience. Furthermore, he took the time to read my first draft. I wish you only the best for South Korea and your future!

Next, I would like to thank Georg Linden. First, he put up with me in an office for several years. In addition, we had many helpful conservations and he was a great help in proofreading.

The same goes for Henry July, who has been a great help to me in many ways. Thank you very much. Further thanks go to Sean Tilson and Roland Huber to whom I could turn again and again with mathematical questions.

Of course I would also like to thank my family and friends who always had an open ear for me. I would especially like to mention my sister Karolin, as well as Corinna Hank, Georg Kempa, Bento Natura, Daniel Rehn and Christoph Schaller. Thank you very much. You are great.

Last but not least, I would like to thank my father, who made it all possible. Enjoy your pension. You deserve it!

2 Preliminaries

2.1 Split reductive groups

We recall the datum that comes along with a split connected reductive group which will be essential throughout the whole thesis.

Therefore, let K be a finite extension of \mathbb{Q}_p and **G** a split connected reductive group over K. Any split maximal torus $\mathbf{T} \subset \mathbf{G}$ of rank d defines the split pair (**G**, **T**) of rank d to which we associate the root datum

$$(X^*(\mathbf{T}), \Phi(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T}), X_*(\mathbf{T}), \Phi^{\vee}(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T}))$$

with the natural pairing

$$\langle , \rangle : X^*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}} \times X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}} \longrightarrow \mathbb{Q}$$
 (2.1)

(cf. [23], Part II, 1.13]). Furthermore, there exists an *invariant inner product* on \mathbf{G} , abbreviated by IIP (cf. [11], Section 5.2.1]). That means we have a non-degenerate positive definite symmetric bilinear form (,) on $X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ for all maximal tori \mathbf{T} (defined over \overline{K}) of \mathbf{G} such that the maps

$$\begin{aligned} X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}} &\to X_*(g\mathbf{T}g^{-1})_{\mathbb{Q}}, \\ X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}} &\to X_*(\tau\mathbf{T}\tau^{-1})_{\mathbb{Q}}, \end{aligned}$$

are isometries for all $g \in \mathbf{G}(\overline{K})$ and $\tau \in \operatorname{Gal}(\overline{K}/K)$.

Example 2.1. [12], Example 6.2.3] Let **G** be semi-simple and **T** a maximal torus of **G**. Then, the *Killing form*

$$(\mu,\mu') = \sum_{\alpha \in \Phi} \langle \mu, \alpha \rangle \langle \mu', \alpha \rangle$$

is a natural choice of an IIP on $X_*(\mathbf{T})$.

A chosen IIP on **G**, for any split pair (\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T}) , together with the natural pairing (2.1) induces an isomorphism of \mathbb{Q} -vector spaces

$$\begin{aligned} X^*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}} &\longrightarrow X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}, \\ \chi &\longmapsto \chi^*, \end{aligned}$$

such that

 $(\chi^*,\mu) = \langle \chi,\mu \rangle \tag{2.2}$

for all $\mu \in X_*(\mathbf{T})$.

For the rest of the subsection, we fix a split maximal torus **T** of **G** and an IIP (,) on **G**. Using $\Phi := \Phi(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T})$ for the root system and fixing a Borel subgroup **B** inside **G** containing **T**, we get a set of corresponding positive roots $\Phi^+ \subset \Phi$ and simple roots $\Delta \subset \Phi^+$ as explained in [58], Section 16.3.1]. We call such a tuple (**T**, **B**) a *Borel pair*.

Then, as in [12, p. 177], after choosing an invariant inner product (,) on $X^*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{O}}$,

we identify the coroot $\alpha^{\vee} \in \Phi^{\vee} := \Phi^{\vee}(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T})$ of a root $\alpha \in \Phi$ by

$$\alpha^{\vee} = \frac{\alpha^*}{(\alpha, \alpha)}.\tag{2.3}$$

There is the following relation between simple roots and coroots.

Lemma 2.2. [58, Lemma 8.2.7] For $\alpha, \beta \in \Delta$, $\alpha \neq \beta$, we have $\langle \alpha, \beta^{\vee} \rangle \leq 0$.

Furthermore, let $W = N_{\mathbf{G}}(\mathbf{T})/\mathbf{T}$ be the Weyl group of \mathbf{G} with longest element w_0 with respect to \mathbf{B} . The natural action of W on \mathbf{T} by conjugation induces an action on $X^*(\mathbf{T})$. Then by, [23], Part II, 1.5], there is a set of generators $S := \{s_\alpha\}_{\alpha \in \Delta} \subset W$, the simple reflections, such that

$$s_{\alpha} \lambda = \lambda - \langle \lambda, \alpha^{\vee} \rangle \alpha \tag{2.4}$$

for $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ and $\alpha^{\vee} \in \Phi^{\vee}(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T})$. But there also is another action of W on $X^*(\mathbf{T})$. Namely, for $w \in W$ and $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})$, the *dot action* is given by

$$w \cdot \lambda = w.(\lambda + \rho) - \rho \tag{2.5}$$

where $\rho := \frac{1}{2} \sum_{\alpha \in \Phi^+} \alpha$. For $w \in W$, the support $\operatorname{supp}(w)$ of w is the set of simple reflections contained in a (thus in any) reduced expression of w.

Each $I \subset \Delta$ defines a root system $\Phi_{\rm I} \subset \Phi$ with positive roots $\Phi_{\rm I}^+ \subset \Phi_{\rm I}$ and a Weyl group $W_{\rm I} \subset W$ generated by the $\{s_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in I}$ (cf. [23], Part II, 1.7]). We denote by W^{I} the right *Kostant representatives*, i.e. the set of minimal length right coset representatives in $W_{I} \setminus W$. It can be described as (cf. [5], (2.2)])

$$W^{I} = \{ w \in W \mid l(s_{\alpha}w) > l(w) \text{ for all } \alpha \in I \}.$$

Lemma 2.3. [22], Section 0.3 (4)] Let $w \in W$ and $I \subset \Delta$. Then, $w \in W^I$ if and only if $w^{-1}\alpha \in \Phi^+$ for all $\alpha \in \Phi_I^+$.

Additionally, for $w \in W$ let

$$I(w) := \{ \alpha \in \Delta \mid l(s_{\alpha}w) > l(w) \} \subset \Delta$$

$$(2.6)$$

be the unique maximal subset such that $w \in W^{I(w)}$ (cf. [44, p. 663]). Moreover, we have an inclusion preserving bijection (cf. [35], Proposition 12.2])

$$\mathcal{P}(\Delta) \longleftrightarrow \{\text{parabolic subgroups } \mathbf{P} \supset \mathbf{B}\}$$

$$I \longmapsto \mathbf{B} W_I \mathbf{B} =: \mathbf{P}_I$$
(2.7)

where the subgroups \mathbf{P}_I denote the standard parabolic subgroups of \mathbf{G} with respect to \mathbf{B} , e.g. $\mathbf{P}_{\emptyset} = \mathbf{B}$, $\mathbf{P}_{\Delta} = \mathbf{G}$. Furthermore, each $\mathbf{P} := \mathbf{P}_I$ admits a Levi decomposition $\mathbf{P} = \mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{P}} \cdot \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{P}}$ (cf. [23], Part II, 1.8]). Here, $\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{P}}$ denotes the standard Levi factor containing \mathbf{T} and $\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{P}}$ the unipotent radical of \mathbf{P} . Additionally, we let $\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{P}}^-$ be its opposite unipotent radical.

Remark 2.4. Let $I, J \subset \Delta$. Since $W_I \cap W_J = W_{I \cap J}$, one sees that $\mathbf{P}_I \cap \mathbf{P}_J = \mathbf{P}_{I \cap J}$.

Additionally, we define

$$X^*(\mathbf{T})_I^+ := \left\{ \lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T}) \, \middle| \, \langle \lambda, \alpha^{\vee} \rangle \ge 0 \text{ for all } \alpha \in I \right\}$$
(2.8)

for $I \subset \Delta$ to be the set of $\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{P}_I}$ -dominant weights. For $I = \Delta$, we just write $X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$ and call it the set of dominant weights.

Proposition 2.5. [32, p. 502] Let $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$, $w \in W$ and $I \subset \Delta$. If $w \in W^I$, then $w \cdot \lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})_I^+$.

Remark 2.6. If λ is additionally regular, i.e. $\langle \lambda + \rho, \alpha^{\vee} \rangle \neq 0$ for all $\alpha \in \Phi$ (cf. [22], Section 1.8]), then also the converse holds (cf. [5], Proposition 2.4]).

The derived group \mathbf{G}_{der} is a connected semi-simple subgroup of \mathbf{G} with maximal torus

$$\mathbf{T}_{der} := \langle \operatorname{Im}(\alpha^{\vee}) \mid \alpha \in \Phi \rangle \subset \mathbf{T}$$
(2.9)

(cf. 58, Proposition 8.1.8/ Section 16.2.5]). Moreover, \mathbf{T}_{der} splits by 6, Proposition 8.2.(c)]. The natural map

$$X^{*}(\mathbf{T}) \longrightarrow X^{*}(\mathbf{T}_{der})$$

$$\lambda \longmapsto \lambda \circ \iota,$$
(2.10)

induced by the inclusion ι (2.9), is injective after restriction to Φ (cf. [58, Section 8.1, p. 135]). Thus, we identify Φ with its image. Therefore, the split pair ($\mathbf{G}_{der}, \mathbf{T}_{der}$) has the root datum

$$(X^*(\mathbf{T}_{\mathrm{der}}), \Phi, X_*(\mathbf{T}_{\mathrm{der}}), \Phi^{\vee})$$

(cf. [58, Corollary 8.1.9]) and we denote the associated pairing by \langle , \rangle_{der} . Then, by semi-simplicity of \mathbf{G}_{der} , the simple roots Δ form a basis of $X^*(\mathbf{T}_{der})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ (cf. [23, Part II, 1.6]). Thus, we can define the dual basis

$$\{\varpi_{\alpha} \mid \alpha \in \Delta\} \subset X_*(\mathbf{T}_{\mathrm{der}})_{\mathbb{Q}},\tag{2.11}$$

i.e. $\langle \beta, \varpi_{\alpha} \rangle_{\text{der}} = \delta_{\alpha,\beta}$ for all $\alpha, \beta \in \Delta$. Naturally, $\{\varpi_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha \in \Delta} \subset X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$. By duality, the corresponding set of coroots $\{\alpha^{\vee} \mid \alpha \in \Delta\}$ forms a basis of $X_*(\mathbf{T}_{\text{der}})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ (cf. [23], Part II, 1.6]) and we analogously define the dual basis

$$\{\check{\varpi}_{\alpha} \mid \alpha \in \Delta\} \subset X^*(\mathbf{T}_{\mathrm{der}})_{\mathbb{Q}}$$

whose elements are known as *fundamental weights*. Then, a helpful oberservation for later is the following.

Lemma 2.7. Let $\mu = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} n_{\alpha} \alpha^{\vee} \in X_*(\mathbf{T}_{der})_{\mathbb{Q}} \subset X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ with $n_{\alpha} \in \mathbb{Q}$, and $\beta \in \Delta$. Then,

$$(\mu, \varpi_{\beta}) > 0$$
 if and only if $\langle \check{\varpi}_{\beta}, \mu \rangle_{der} > 0$.

Proof. Let $\alpha \in \Delta$. We have by (2.3) and (2.2)

$$(\alpha^{\vee}, \varpi_{\beta}) = \left(\frac{2}{(\alpha, \alpha)}\alpha^*, \varpi_{\beta}\right) = \frac{2}{(\alpha, \alpha)}\langle \alpha, \varpi_{\beta} \rangle.$$

As the natural pairings are induced by the composition of a cocharacter with a character (cf. [23], Part II, Section 1.3]), we see that

$$\langle \alpha, \varpi_{\beta} \rangle = \langle \alpha, \varpi_{\beta} \rangle_{\mathrm{der}}.$$

Thus,

$$(\alpha^{\vee}, \varpi_{\beta}) = \frac{2}{(\alpha, \alpha)} \langle \alpha, \varpi_{\beta} \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} = \frac{2}{(\alpha, \alpha)} \delta_{\alpha, \beta}.$$

Hence,

$$\left(\sum n_{\alpha}\alpha^{\vee}, \varpi_{\beta}\right) = \frac{2}{(\beta, \beta)}n_{\beta} > 0 \text{ if and only if } \langle \check{\varpi}_{\beta}, \sum n_{\alpha}\alpha^{\vee} \rangle_{\text{der}} = n_{\beta} > 0.$$

Further, since the fundamental weights form a basis of $X^*(\mathbf{T}_{der})_{\mathbb{Q}}$, we notice that

$$\alpha = \sum_{\beta \in \Delta} \langle \alpha, \beta^{\vee} \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} \check{\varpi}_{\beta} \tag{2.12}$$

for $\alpha \in \Delta$. After we fix an ordering on $\Delta = \{\alpha_1 < \alpha_2 < \ldots < \alpha_r\}$, the *Cartan matrix* is defined as

$$C \in \mathbb{Q}^{|\Delta| \times |\Delta|} \text{ with } C_{ji} := \langle \alpha_i, \alpha_j^{\vee} \rangle_{\text{der}}.$$
(2.13)

Hence, by (2.12), it is the base change matrix from $\{\alpha\}_{\alpha\in\Delta}$ to $\{\varpi_{\alpha}\}_{\alpha\in\Delta}$. For the inverse of C, we will need the following fact.

Lemma 2.8. Let Φ be irreducible. Then, all entries of C^{-1} are positive rational numbers.

Proof. This is explained in [34], Section 5, p. 19].

With the definition of (2.11), we also obtain an alternative description of the standard parabolic subgroups of **G**. For a one-parameter subgroup $\mu \in X_*(\mathbf{G})$ defined over some field extension L of K, we denote by $\mathbf{P}(\mu)$ the parabolic subgroup of \mathbf{G}_L whose \overline{K} -valued points are given by

$$\mathbf{P}(\mu)(\overline{K}) = \left\{ g \in \mathbf{G}(\overline{K}) \mid \lim_{t \to 0} \mu(t) g \mu(t)^{-1} \text{ exists in } \mathbf{G}(\overline{K}) \right\}$$
(2.14)

(cf. 36, Definition 2.3/Proposition 2.6]). We have seen that $\langle \beta, \varpi_{\alpha} \rangle = \delta_{\alpha,\beta}$ for $\alpha, \beta \in \Delta$. Thus, 58, Proof of Proposition 8.4.5/Lemma 15.1.2] implies that

$$\mathbf{P}_{\Delta\setminus\{\alpha\}}=\mathbf{P}(\varpi_{\alpha}).$$

Hence, we deduce from Remark 2.4 that

$$\mathbf{P}_{I} = \bigcap_{\alpha \notin I} \mathbf{P}_{\Delta \setminus \{\alpha\}} = \bigcap_{\alpha \notin I} \mathbf{P}(\varpi_{\alpha})$$
(2.15)

for $I \subset \Delta$.

Jantzen states in 23, Introduction and Part II, Section 1] that split reductive groups and constructions like Borel und Parabolic subgroups can be carried out over \mathbb{Z} , and therefore, by base change, over any integral domain. This is based on the following theorem.

Theorem 2.9. [53], Exp. XXV, Corollary 1.3] Let K be a field. Then, for any split connected reductive group **G** over K exists a reductive \mathbb{Z} -group \mathcal{G} so that

$$\mathcal{G} \otimes_{\mathbb{Z}} K \cong \mathbf{G}.$$

As remarked in 53, Exp. XXV, Section 1] after the above statement, \mathcal{G} can be assumed to be split.

In the case that K is a local field with ring of integers \mathcal{O}_K and **G** a split connected reductive group over K, this implies that there is a split reductive group \mathbf{G}_0 over \mathcal{O}_K such that $(\mathbf{G}_0)_K \cong \mathbf{G}$. Furthermore, $(\mathbf{G}_0)_k$ and **G** have the same root datum for k the residue field of \mathcal{O}_K . We call \mathbf{G}_0 a split reductive group model of **G** over \mathbf{O}_K .

Last but not least, we will consider an example that can be kept in mind for the upcoming chapters.

Example 2.10. Let $K = \mathbb{Q}_p$, $n \in \mathbb{N}$ and $\mathbf{G} = \operatorname{GL}_n$ over K. We let \mathbf{T} be the algebraic subgroup of diagonal matrices. Then, we identify $X^*(\mathbf{T})$ with \mathbb{Z}^n by associating the character

$$\lambda: (t_1,\ldots,t_n) \longmapsto \prod t_i^{\lambda_i}$$

to $(\lambda_1, \ldots, \lambda_n) \in \mathbb{Z}^n$. Similarly, $\mathbb{Z}^n \cong X_*(\mathbf{T})$ by mapping $(\mu_1, \ldots, \mu_n) \in \mathbb{Z}^n$ to the cocharacter

$$\mu: z \longmapsto (z^{\mu_1}, \dots z^{\mu_n})$$

Then, the pairing (2.1) is the usual inner product of \mathbb{Q}^n . Furthermore,

$$\Phi = \Phi^{\vee} = \{e_i - e_j \mid 1 \le i \ne j \le n\}$$

with e_i the *i*-th standard unit vector of \mathbb{Q}^n . Hence,

$$\rho = \frac{1}{2}(n-1, n-3, \dots, -(n-3), -(n-1)) \in \mathbb{Z}^n$$

If we choose \mathbf{B} to be the algebraic subgroup of upper triangular matrices, then

$$\Delta = \{ \alpha_i := e_i - e_{i+1} \mid 1 \le i \le n - 1 \}$$

Moreover, $W = S_n$ and $s_i := s_{\alpha_i}$ is the transposition (i, i + 1). Then, W acts on $X_*(\mathbf{T})$ and $X^*(\mathbf{T})$ by permuting entries, respectively. Let $I \subset \Delta$ and $\Delta \setminus I = \{\alpha_{i_1}, \alpha_{i_2}, \ldots, \alpha_{i_r}\}$ with $0 = i_0 < i_1 < i_2 < \ldots < i_r$. Then, \mathbf{P}_I is the algebraic subgroup such that $\mathbf{P}_I(\overline{K})$ consists of matrices with $\operatorname{GL}_{i_{j+1}-i_j}(\overline{K})$ -blocks along the main diagonal (ordered by the i_j), zeros below and arbitrary entrys above. Furthermore,

$$X_I^*(\mathbf{T})^+ = \{ (\lambda_1, \dots, \lambda_n) \in \mathbb{Z}^n \mid \lambda_i \ge \lambda_{i+1} \text{ for all } \alpha_i \in I \}.$$

The derived subgroup \mathbf{G}_{der} of \mathbf{G} is SL_n , with $\mathbf{T}_{der}(\overline{K}) = \mathbf{T}(\overline{K}) \cap \mathrm{SL}_n(\overline{K})$. In addition,

$$\overline{\omega}_{\alpha_i} = \check{\overline{\omega}}_{\alpha_i} = \frac{1}{n}(n-i,\ldots,n-i,-i\ldots,-i) \in \mathbb{Z}^n$$

with $(\varpi_{\alpha_i})_i = n - i$ and $(\varpi_{\alpha_i})_{i+1} = -i$.

2.2 The BGG categories \mathcal{O} and $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$

Let the ground field K be a finite extension of \mathbb{Q}_p and (\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T}) a split pair over K of rank d (cf. section 2.1). Further, let (\mathbf{T}, \mathbf{B}) be a fixed Borel pair and L a finite extension of K.

Over the complex numbers, the BGG category \mathcal{O} and its parabolic version $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ provide powerful tools to investigate (infinite dimensional) representations of Lie algebras. A good reference for this topic is [22]. The goal of this chapter is to recall the adaption of these notions to the case where the coefficient field L is not algebraically closed. For our setting, this was considered in detail in [44, Section 2.5] by Orlik and Strauch.

Definition 2.11. [44, Section 2.5, p. 105] The category \mathcal{O} is defined to be the full subcategory of $\operatorname{Mod} U(\mathfrak{g})$ whose objects M satisfy the following conditions:

- $(\mathcal{O}1)$ M is a finitely generated $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -module.
- (O2) M is \mathfrak{t}_L -semisimple, i.e. $M = \bigoplus_{\lambda \in \mathfrak{t}_L^*} M_{\lambda}$.
- (O3) M is locally \mathfrak{b}_L -finite, i.e. for each $v \in M$ one has that $U(\mathfrak{b}) \cdot v \subset M$ is a finite dimensional L-vector space.

Here, for $\lambda \in \mathfrak{t}_L^* = \operatorname{Hom}_L(\mathfrak{t}_L, L)$, we denote by

$$M_{\lambda} = \{ v \in M \mid t \cdot v = \lambda(t)v \text{ for all } t \in \mathfrak{t} \}$$

the λ -eigenspace of M. Furthermore, by derivation we consider $X^*(\mathbf{T})$ as a subgroup of \mathfrak{t}_L^* .

Definition 2.12. [22], Section 1.15] Let $M \in \mathcal{O}$. The *formal character* of M is defined as

$$\operatorname{ch}(M) : \mathfrak{t}_L^* \longrightarrow \mathbb{Z}^+$$

 $\lambda \longmapsto \dim_L(M_\lambda)$

Remark 2.13. It is also common to write

$$\operatorname{ch}(M) = \sum_{\lambda \in \mathfrak{t}_L^*} \dim_L(M_\lambda) e(\lambda)$$

for the formal character of $M \in \mathcal{O}$. Here, $e(\lambda)$ is the characteristic function which is 1 for λ and zero else.

Moreover, Orlik and Strauch defined a certain subcategory of \mathcal{O} which will play an important role for upcoming sections.

Definition 2.14. [44], Definition 2.6] Let \mathcal{O}_{alg} be the full subcategory of \mathcal{O} whose objects are $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -modules M such that all λ appearing in (\mathcal{O} 2), for which $M_{\lambda} \neq 0$, are contained in $X^*(\mathbf{T}) \subset \mathfrak{t}_L^*$.

Example 2.15. [44], Example 2.7] Let $\lambda \in \mathfrak{t}_L^*$. The action of \mathfrak{t}_L on L given by λ defines the \mathfrak{t}_L -module L_{λ} which extends uniquely to a \mathfrak{b}_L -module. Then,

$$M(\lambda) = U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{b})} L_{\lambda}$$

is the Verma module corresponding to λ and $L(\lambda) \in \mathcal{O}$ is its unique simple quotient. Notice that $M(\lambda)$ and $L(\lambda)$, respectively, lies in \mathcal{O}_{alg} if and only if $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})$.

Lemma 2.16. [8], Lemma 1] Let $\lambda, \mu \in \mathfrak{t}_L^*$ and M a $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -submodule of $M(\lambda)$, such that $\operatorname{ch}(M) = \operatorname{ch}(M(\mu))$. Then, M is isomorphic to $M(\mu)$.

There is also a parabolic version of the category \mathcal{O} . To define it, let **P** be a standard parabolic subgroup of **G** with respect to **B**.

Definition 2.17. [44, p. 106] By $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ we denote the full subcategory of $\operatorname{Mod} U(\mathfrak{g})$ whose objects M satisfy the following conditions:

- $(\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}1)$ M is a finitely generated $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -module.
- $(\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}2)$ Viewed as an $\mathfrak{l}_{\mathcal{P},L}$ -module, M is the direct sum of finite dimensional simple modules.
- $(\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}3)$ *M* is locally $\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P},L}$ -finite.

First, notice that $\mathcal{O} = \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{b}}$ and that $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{g}}$ is the category of all finite dimensional (semisimple) $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -modules. Moreover, for a standard parabolic $\mathbf{Q} \supset \mathbf{P}$, we have that $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{q}} \subset \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$. Hence, $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ is a full subcategory of \mathcal{O} and contains all finite dimensional $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -modules. Additionally, $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ is an *L*-linear, abelian, artinian and noetherian category which is closed under taking submodules and quotients. Again, the Jordan-Hölder series of an object of $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ lies in $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$.

Letting $\operatorname{Irr}(\mathfrak{l}_{P,L})^{\operatorname{fd}}$ be the set of isomorphism classes of finite dimensional irreducible $\mathfrak{l}_{P,L}$ -modules, we have for $M \in \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ that

$$M = \bigoplus_{\mathfrak{a} \in \operatorname{Irr}(\mathfrak{l}_{P,K})^{\operatorname{fd}}} M_{\mathfrak{a}},$$

by property $(\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}2)$ in Definition 2.17 with $M_{\mathfrak{a}} \subset M$ being the \mathfrak{a} -isotypic part of the representation \mathfrak{a} . Similiar to before there is an algebraic subcategory in $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$.

Definition 2.18. [44, p. 106] Let $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ be the full subcategory of $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ with objects $M \in \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ satisfying the following property: whenever $M_{\mathfrak{a}} \neq 0$, then, \mathfrak{a} is induced by a finite dimensional algebraic $\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{P},L}$ -representation.

Then, $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{b}} = \mathcal{O}_{alg}$ and furthermore, $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ is an abelian, artinian, noetherian category which is closed under taking submodules and quotients.

Definition 2.19. [44, Definition 5.2] Let $M \in \mathcal{O}$. A parabolic subalgebra \mathfrak{p} (and the corresponding parabolic subgroup \mathbf{P} , respectively) is called *maximal* for M if $M \in \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ and $M \notin \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{q}}$ for all parabolic subalgebras \mathfrak{q} strictly containing \mathfrak{p} .

Example 2.20. [44], Example 2.10] Let $I \subset \Delta$ and $\mathbf{P} := \mathbf{P}_I$. For $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})_I^+$, there is a corresponding finite dimensional irreducible algebraic $\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{P},L}$ -representation $V_I(\lambda)$, which can be viewed as a \mathbf{P}_L -representation by letting $\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{P},L}$ act trivially on it. Then,

$$M_I(\lambda) = U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{g})} V_I(\lambda)$$

is the generalized Verma module associated to λ , which lies in $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$. We have a surjection

$$q_I: M(\lambda) \to M_I(\lambda)$$

with the kernel being the image of $\bigoplus_{\alpha \in I} M(s_{\alpha} \cdot \lambda) \to M(\lambda)$ (cf. [33], Proposition 2.1]). Furthermore, for $J \subset I$, there is a transition map

$$q_{J,I}: M_J(\lambda) \to M_I(\lambda)$$
 (2.16)

such that $q_I = q_{I,J} \circ q_J$ (cf. [43], Section 2, p. 653]).

2.3 The category of locally analytic representations

Let K and L be fields as in the previous section and G a locally K-analytic group. In this subsection, we take a look at $\operatorname{Rep}_L^{\ell a}(G)$, the category of locally analytic representations of G on a certain class of L-vector spaces introduced by Schneider and Teitelbaum in [57].

We start by recalling some definitions concerning topological *L*-vector spaces.

- **Definition 2.21.** i) A topological *L*-vector space *V* is *locally convex* if it has a fundamental system of open 0-neighbourhoods consisting of \mathcal{O}_K -submodules (cf. 57, Section 1, p. 444]).
 - ii) A locally convex L-vector space is *barelled* if every closed lattice is open (cf. 57, Section 1, p. 444]).
- iii) A locally convex *L*-vector space is of *compact type* if it is the inductive limit of countably many *L*-Banach spaces $(V_n)_{n \in \mathbb{N}}$ with transition maps being injective and compact (cf. [57], Section 1, p. 445]).
- iv) A locally convex L-vector space is called an L-Fréchet space if it is metrizable and complete (cf. 54, Section 8, p. 46]).

Theorem 2.22. [57, Theorem 1.1] Any space V of compact type is Hausdorff, complete, bornological and reflexive. Its dual is a Fréchet space and satisfies $V' = \lim_{n \to \infty} V'_n$.

Let V be a Hausdorff barelled locally convex L-vector space. Then, $C^{an}(G, V)$ is the locally convex L-vector space of locally L-analytic functions on G with values in V (see [57], Section 2, p. 447] for a detailed description). Further,

$$D(G) := C^{an}(G, L)'$$

is the locally convex vector space of L-valued distributions on G (cf. 57, Section 2, Definition, p. 447]). Additionally, with convolution as multiplication, it is an associative L-algebra (cf. 57, Proposition 2.3]). A prominent class of elements of D(G) is that of Dirac distributions δ_g , for $g \in G$, defined by

$$\delta_g(f) = f(g).$$

Definition 2.23. [57], Section 3, p. 451, Definition] A locally analytic *G*-representation V (over L) is a Hausdorff barelled locally convex L-vector space V equipped with a G-action by continuous linear endomorphisms such that, for each $v \in V$, the orbit map $\rho_v(g) := gv$ lies in $C^{an}(G, V)$. We denote the category of such representations by $\operatorname{Rep}_{L}^{\ell a}(G)$.

Definition 2.24. [44], Section 2.1, p. 103] A locally analytic *G*-representation *V* is called *strongly admissible* if *V* is of compact type and V' is a finitely generated D(K)-module for any compact open subgroup *K* of *G*.

As in the algebraic or smooth case, we also have the induction functor.

Definition 2.25. [44], Section 2.2, p. 103] Let H be a closed subgroup of G and (V, ρ) a locally analytic representation of H. The *locally analytic induced representation* $\operatorname{Ind}_{H}^{G}(V)$ is defined as

$$\operatorname{Ind}_{H}^{G}(V) = \{ f \in C^{an}(G, V) \mid f(gh) = \rho(h^{-1})f(g) \,\forall h \in H, \forall g \in G \}.$$

The group G acts on $\operatorname{Ind}_{H}^{G}(V)$ by $(g.f)(x) = f(g^{-1}x)$.

2.4 The functor \mathcal{F}_{P}^{G}

We remain in the setting of section 2.2 Let $G = \mathbf{G}(K)$ and $P = \mathbf{P}(K)$ for some standard parabolic subgroup \mathbf{P} of \mathbf{G} . As mentioned in [57, p. 443], G and P are locally K-analytic groups. We will introduce the functor \mathcal{F}_P^G defined by Orlik und Strauch in [44], which links the category $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ with the category $\operatorname{Rep}_L^{\ell a}(G)$ from the last two subsections.

Due to the results of [44], we have at some point to make the following assumption.

Assumption 2.26. [44, Assumption 5.1] If the root sytem $\Phi(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T})$ has irreducible components of type B, C, or F₄, we assume p > 2, and if $\Phi(\mathbf{G}, \mathbf{T})$ has irreducible components of type G_2 , we assume that p > 3.

Let $M \in \mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$. Then, by the very definition of the category $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$, there is a finitedimensional representation $(W, \rho) \subset M$ of \mathfrak{p}_L which generates M as $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -module. We call such a tuple (M, W) an $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ -pair. Hence, such a pair comes with a short exact sequence of $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -modules

$$0 \to \mathfrak{d} \to U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{g})} W \to M \to 0 \tag{2.17}$$

with \mathfrak{d} being the kernel of the natural map $U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{p})} W \to M$. By the following lemma, we see why it is helpful to restrict to the algebraic part of the category $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}$.

Lemma 2.27. [44], Lemma 3.2] The representation ρ lifts uniquely to an algebraic \mathbf{P}_L -representation on W (which we denote again by ρ).

Thus, we have a locally analytic representation of P on the dual space W' denoted by ρ' . Then, Orlik and Strauch considered the pairing

$$\langle \,,\,\rangle_{C^{an}(G,L)}: D(G)\otimes_{D(P)}W\otimes_{L}\operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W')\longrightarrow C^{an}(G,L)$$

$$(\delta\otimes w)\otimes f\longmapsto \left[g\longmapsto\left(\delta\cdot_{r}\left(f(\cdot)(w)\right)\right)(g)\right]$$

$$(2.18)$$

with $(\delta \cdot_r (f(\cdot)(w)))(g) = \delta(x \mapsto f(gx)(w))$ in [44, p. 108, (3.2.2)]. Besides D(P), we can also consider $U(\mathfrak{g})$ as a subring of D(G), as explained in [57], Section 2, p. 449/450], and similarly $U(\mathfrak{p}) \subset D(P)$. Then, it turns out that the canonical map

$$U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{g})} W \longmapsto D(G) \otimes_{D(P)} W$$

is injective (cf. [44, p.108]). Therefore, with the notation of (2.17), we consider

$$\operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W')^{\mathfrak{d}} := \{ f \in \operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W') \mid \langle \delta, f \rangle_{C^{an}(G,L)} = 0 \text{ for all } \delta \in \mathfrak{d} \}$$

from [44, p.108, (3.2.3)]. It is a G-equivariant subspace of $\operatorname{Ind}_P^G(W')$.

Proposition 2.28. [44] Proposition 3.3. (i)] The representation $\operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W')^{\mathfrak{d}}$ is a strongly admissible locally analytic G-representation. In particular, the underlying topological vector space is reflexive.

Moreover, $D(\mathfrak{g}, P)$ denotes the subring of D(G) generated by $U(\mathfrak{g})$ and D(P). The following lemma explains which $D(\mathfrak{g}, P)$ -module structure we will use on any object $M \in \mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{g}}$ from now on.

Lemma 2.29. [44, Corollary 3.6] There is on any object $M \in \mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ a unique $D(\mathfrak{g}, P)$ -module structure with the following properties:

- i) The action of U(p), as a subring of U(g), coincides with the action of U(p) as a subring of D(P).
- ii) The Dirac distributions $\delta_g \in D(P)$ act like group elements $g \in P$ (the latter action given by Lemma 2.27).

Moreover, any morphism $M_1 \to M_2$ in $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ is automatically a homomorphism of $D(\mathfrak{g}, P)$ -modules.

Proposition 2.30. [44, Proposition 3.7] There is an isomorphism of D(G)-modules

$$D(G) \otimes_{D(\mathfrak{g},P)} M \cong \left(\operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W')^{\mathfrak{d}} \right)'.$$

Based on this, Orlik and Strauch defined the following contravariant functor

$$\mathcal{F}_P^G : \mathcal{O}_{\mathrm{alg}}^{\mathfrak{p}} \longrightarrow \mathrm{Rep}_L^{\ell a}(G)$$
$$M \longmapsto (D(G) \otimes_{D(\mathfrak{q}, P)} M)'.$$

in [44, Section 4.1].

Proposition 2.31. [44, Proposition 4.2] The functor \mathcal{F}_P^G is exact.

They also gave an alternative description of this functor [44, Section 3.8] which we would like to recall.

Let \mathbf{G}_0 be a split reductive group model of \mathbf{G} over \mathcal{O}_K (cf. section 2.1) with Borel pair $(\mathbf{T}_0, \mathbf{B}_0)$ and parabolic \mathbf{P}_0 containing \mathbf{B}_0 such that the base change to K yields the pair (\mathbf{T}, \mathbf{B}) and \mathbf{P} respectively. Let $\pi \in \mathcal{O}_L$ be an uniformizer. For any positive number $m \in \mathbb{N}$, we consider the reduction map

$$p_m: \mathbf{G}_0(\mathcal{O}_L) \to \mathbf{G}_0(\mathcal{O}_L/(\pi^m)).$$

We set $G_0 = \mathbf{G}_0(\mathcal{O}_L)$ and define $P^m := p_m^{-1}(\mathbf{P}_0(\mathcal{O}_L/(\pi^m)) \subset G_0$. Let $\Phi_{\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}} = \{\alpha_1, \ldots, \alpha_r\}$ be the set of roots appearing in $\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}$ (under the adjoint action of \mathbf{T}) and $y_{\alpha_1}, \ldots, y_{\alpha_r}$ be

a basis of the *L*-vector space $\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}^-$. Then, for $\epsilon \in |\overline{K^*}|$, the norm $|\cdot|_{\epsilon}$ on $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}^-)$ is given by

$$\left|\sum_{(i_1,\dots,i_r)\in\mathbb{N}_0^r} a_{i_1,\dots,i_r} y_{\alpha_1}^{i_1} \cdots y_{\alpha_r}^{i_r}\right|_{\epsilon} = \sup_{(i_1,\dots,i_r)\in\mathbb{N}_0^r} \left|i_1!\cdots i_r!\cdot a_{i_1,\dots,i_r}\right| \epsilon^{i_1+\dots+i_r}.$$
 (2.19)

Completing $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}^{-})$ with respect to $| |_{\epsilon}$ yields the *L*-Banach space

$$U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}^{-})_{\epsilon} := \left\{ \sum_{(i_{1},\dots,i_{r})\in\mathbb{N}_{0}^{r}} a_{i_{1},\dots,i_{r}} y_{\alpha_{1}}^{i_{1}}\cdots y_{\alpha_{r}}^{i_{r}} \middle| a_{i_{1},\dots,i_{r}} \in L, \\ |i_{1}!\cdots i_{r}!\cdot a_{i_{1},\dots,i_{r}}|\epsilon^{i_{1}+\dots+i_{r}} \to 0 \text{ for } i_{1}+\dots+i_{r} \to 0 \right\}.$$
(2.20)

Let $m \in \mathbb{N}$ and $\epsilon_m := |\pi|^m$. We will write $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}})_m$ for $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}})_{\frac{1}{\epsilon_m}}$. For $M \in \mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$, we have seen in (2.17) that there is a short exact exact sequence

$$0 \to \mathfrak{d} \to U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{g})} W \to M \to 0$$

of $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -modules with a finite dimensional \mathfrak{p} -representation W which can be lifted. By the PBW-Theorem, we know that

$$U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{g})} W \cong U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}^{-}) \otimes_{L} W.$$

For that reason, we consider \mathfrak{d} as a submodule of $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}}) \otimes_L W$ and denote by \mathfrak{d}_m its topological closure in $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}})_m \otimes_L W$. The latter object also has a natural P^m -action induced by the action

$$p.(x \otimes w) = \operatorname{Ad}(p)(x) \otimes w$$

of P_0 on $U(\mathfrak{g}) \otimes_{U(\mathfrak{g})} W$ (cf. [44, p.113/114]). Finally, this leads to the following identification.

Proposition 2.32. [44, Corollary 3.12] Let $M \in \mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$. With the preceeding notation we have that

$$\mathcal{F}_P^G(M) = \left(\varprojlim_m \operatorname{Ind}_{P^m}^{G_0} (U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}})_m \otimes_L W/\mathfrak{d}_m) \right)'.$$

Inspired by Proposition 2.30, Orlik und Strauch extended the functor \mathcal{F}_{L}^{G} to a bifunctor on $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}} \times \operatorname{Rep}_{L}^{\infty, \operatorname{adm}}(L_{P})$ (cf. [44, Section 4.4]). For this, let $V \in \operatorname{Rep}_{L}^{\infty, \operatorname{adm}}(L_{P})$. By inflation, we consider V as a representation of P. Equipping V with the finest locally convex L-vector space topology, it is of compact type and carries the structure of a locally analytic P-representation (cf. [44, p. 117]). For an $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ -pair (M, W), Orlik und Strauch consider $W \otimes_{L} V$ as the projective (or inductive) tensor product which is complete and a locally analytic P-representation via the diagonal action (cf. [44, p. 117]). Then, they defined

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{F}_{P}^{G}(M, W, V) &:= \operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W' \otimes V)^{\mathfrak{d}} \\ &:= \{ f \in \operatorname{Ind}_{P}^{G}(W' \otimes V) \mid \langle \delta, f \rangle_{C^{an}(G, L)} = 0 \text{ for all } \delta \in \mathfrak{d} \} \end{aligned}$$

with the pairing $\langle , \rangle_{C^{an}(G,V)}$ being defined completely analogous to (2.18). However, the definition is independent of the chosen $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}}$ -pair (M,W) (cf. [44, Section 4.6]).

Therefore, we write $\mathcal{F}_{P}^{G}(M, V)$ for any $\mathcal{F}_{P}^{G}(M, W, V)$. We recap some properties of the bi-functor \mathcal{F}_{P}^{G} .

Proposition 2.33. [44, Proposition 4.7] \mathcal{F}_P^G is a bi-functor

$$\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}}_{\mathrm{alg}} \times \mathrm{Rep}_{L}^{\infty,\mathrm{adm}}(L_{P}) \longrightarrow \mathrm{Rep}_{L}^{\ell a}(G)$$

 $(M,V) \longmapsto \mathcal{F}_{P}^{G}(M,V)$

which is contravariant in M and covariant in V.

In case V is the trivial representation 1, we will write $\mathcal{F}_{P}^{G}(M)$.

Proposition 2.34. [44, Proposition 4.9]

- i) The bi-functor \mathcal{F}_P^G is exact in both arguments.
- ii) If $Q \supset P$ is a parabolic subgroup, $\mathfrak{q} = \operatorname{Lie}(Q)$, and $M \in \mathcal{O}_{\operatorname{alg}}^{\mathfrak{q}}$, then

$$\mathcal{F}_P^G(M,V) = \mathcal{F}_Q^G(M, i_{L_P(L_Q \cap U_P)}^{L_Q}(V))$$

where $i_{L_P(L_Q\cap U_P)}^{L_Q}(V) = i_P^Q(V)$ denotes the corresponding induced representation in the category of smooth representations.

Theorem 2.35. [44, Theorem 5.8] Assume that Assumption 2.26 holds. Let $M \in \mathcal{O}_{alg}$ be simple and assume that \mathfrak{p} is maximal for M (cf. Definition 2.19). Let V be a smooth and irreducible L_P -representation. Then, $\mathcal{F}_P^G(M, V)$ is topologically irreducible as a G-representation.

We devote the last part of this subsection to an application of the functor \mathcal{F}_P^G . Let $I \subset \Delta$ and P_I be the associated parabolic subgroup of G. Then, we notice that

$$\operatorname{Ind}_{P_I}^G(\mathbf{1}) = \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(M_I(0))$$

where 0 is the weight sent to the zero vector under the identification $X^*(\mathbf{T}) \cong \mathbb{Z}^d$. More generally, for $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$ (cf. (2.8)), we have

$$I_{P_I}^G(\lambda) := \operatorname{Ind}_{P_I}^G(V_I(\lambda)') = \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(M_I(\lambda))$$
(2.21)

since the $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}_I}$ -pair $(V_I(\lambda), M_I(\lambda))$ has trivial kernel \mathfrak{d} (cf. (2.17)). For $I \subset J \subset \Delta$, the morphism $q_{I,J}$ (cf. (2.16)) induces, by Proposition 2.33 and 2.34, a map

$$p_{J,I}: I_{P_J}^G(\lambda) = \mathcal{F}_{P_J}^G(M_J(\lambda), \mathbf{1}) \xrightarrow{\mathcal{F}_{P_J}^G(q_{I,J}, \text{ incl.})} \mathcal{F}_{P_J}^G(M_I(\lambda), i_{P_I}^{P_J}) \cong \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(M_I(\lambda)) = I_{P_I}^G(\lambda)$$

of locally analytic *G*-representations. Furthermore, the map $p_{J,I}$ is injective and has closed image (cf. [43, p. 660]).

Definition 2.36. [43, p. 661] For $I \subset \Delta$,

$$V_{P_I}^G(\lambda) := I_{P_I}^G(\lambda) \Big/ \sum_{J \supsetneq I} I_{P_J}^G(\lambda)$$

is the twisted generalized Steinberg representation.

It has the following resolution in $\operatorname{Rep}_{L}^{\ell a}(G)$.

Theorem 2.37. [43, Theorem 4.2] Let $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$ and $I \subset \Delta$. Then, the following complex is a resolution of $V_{P_I}^G(\lambda)$ by locally analytic G-representations,

$$0 \to I_{G}^{G}(\lambda) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset K \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus K| = 1}} I_{P_{K}}^{G}(\lambda) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset K \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus K| = 2}} I_{P_{K}}^{G}(\lambda) \to \dots$$
$$\dots \to \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset K \subset \Delta \\ |K \setminus I| = 1}} I_{P_{K}}^{G}(\lambda) \to I_{P_{I}}^{G}(\lambda) \to V_{P_{I}}^{G}(\lambda) \to 0.$$

Here, the differentials $d_{K',K} : I_{P_{K'}}^G(\lambda) \to I_{P_K}^G(\lambda)$ are defined as follows. We fix an ordering on Δ . Let $K, K' \subset \Delta$ with |K| = |K'| - 1 and $K' = \{\alpha_1 < \ldots < \alpha_r\}$. Then,

$$d_{K',K} = \begin{cases} (-1)^i p_{K',K} & K' = K \cup \{\alpha_i\} \\ 0 & K \notin K' \end{cases}$$

We like to stress a relative version which was shown in [43, p. 663] in the proof of the previous theorem. For this we follow the notion of [43, p. 661].

Definition 2.38. Let $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$, $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in W^I$. By Proposition 2.5, we know that $w \cdot \lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})_I^+$. Then, we set

$$I_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) := \operatorname{Ind}_{P_{I}}^{G}(V_{I}(w \cdot \lambda)') = \mathcal{F}_{P_{I}}^{G}(M_{I}(w \cdot \lambda)), \qquad (2.22)$$
$$V_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) := I_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) / \sum_{\substack{J \supseteq I \\ w \in W^{J}}} I_{P_{J}}^{G}(w).$$

Corollary 2.39. Let $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$, $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in W^I$. Then, the following complex is acyclic

$$0 \to I_{P_{I(w)}}^{G}(w) \to \ldots \to \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset K \subset I(w) \\ |K \setminus I| = 1}} I_{P_{K}}^{G}(w) \to I_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) \to V_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) \to 0.$$

In [43], Theorem 4.6], it was shown that the Jordan-Hölder factors of $V_B^G(\lambda)$ are of the form $\mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(w \cdot \lambda), v_{P_J}^{P_I})$ for suitable $I, J \subset \Delta$ and $w \in W$. This is related to Theorem 2.35. We will use Corollary 2.39 to get a similar statement for $V_B^G(w)$ which partially generalizes [43], Theorem 4.6].

For $w, v \in W$, we denote by $m(w, v) \in \mathbb{Z}_{\geq 0}$ the *multiplicity* of $L(v \cdot 0)$ in $M(w \cdot 0)$. It is well known that m(w, v) > 0 if and only if $w \leq v$ with respect to the Bruhat order \leq on W. Moreover, the multiplicities can be computed using Kazhdan-Lusztig polynomials (cf. 3 or 9) which is in general only possible in a timely manner with the help of a computer.

Theorem 2.40. Assume that Assumption 2.26 holds. Fix $w, v \in W$ and let $I_0 := I(w)$ and I := I(v), respectively, be as above. For a subset $J \subset \Delta$ with $J \subset I$, let $v_{P_I}^{P_I}$ be the generalized smooth Steinberg representation of L_{P_I} . Then, the multiplicity of the irreducible G-representation $\mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_J}^{P_I})$ in $V_B^G(w)$ is

$$\sum_{\substack{w' \in W \\ \operatorname{supp}(w') = J \cap I_0}} (-1)^{\ell(w') + |J \cap I_0|} m(w'w, v)$$

and in this way we obtain all the Jordan-Hölder factors of $V_B^G(w)$.

Proof. We only have to slightly modify the proof of [43, Theorem 4.6]. From the resolution for $V_B^G(w)$ by Corollary 2.39, we obtain the multiplicity

$$\left[V_B^G(w): \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_J}^{P_I})\right] = \sum_{K \subset I_0} (-1)^{|K|} \left[I_{P_K}^G(w): \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_J}^{P_I})\right]$$

of the simple object $\mathcal{F}_{P_{I}}^{G}(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_{J}}^{P_{I}})$ in $V_{B}^{G}(w)$. By the arguments mentioned in loc. cit, it follows that $[I_{P_{K}}^{G}(w) : \mathcal{F}_{P_{I}}^{G}(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_{J}}^{P_{I}})] \neq 0$ if only if $K \subset J \cap I_{0}$. In that case we have

$$[I_{P_K}^G(w):\mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(v\cdot\lambda),v_{P_J}^{P_I})] = [M_K(w\cdot\lambda):L(v\cdot\lambda)].$$

From the character formula

$$\operatorname{ch}(M_K(w \cdot \lambda)) = \sum_{w' \in W_K} (-1)^{\ell(w')} \operatorname{ch}(M(w'w \cdot \lambda)),$$

(cf. 22, Section 9.6, p. 189, Proposition]), we obtain

$$\begin{split} \left[V_B^G(w) : \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(L(v \cdot \lambda), v_{P_J}^{P_I}) \right] &= \sum_{K \subset J \cap I_0} (-1)^{|K|} \sum_{w' \in W_K} (-1)^{\ell(w')} \left[M(w'w \cdot \lambda) : L(v \cdot \lambda) \right] \\ &= \sum_{w' \in W} (-1)^{\ell(w')} \left[M(w'w \cdot \lambda) : L(v \cdot \lambda) \right] \sum_{\substack{K \subset J \cap I_0 \\ \text{supp}(w') \subset K}} (-1)^{|K|}. \end{split}$$

Finally, we have

$$\sum_{\mathrm{supp}(w') \subset K \subset J \cap I_0} (-1)^{|K|} = (-1)^{\mathrm{supp}(w')} (1-1)^{|(J \cap I_0) \setminus \mathrm{supp}(w')|}$$

which is non-zero if and only if $\operatorname{supp}(w') = J \cap I_0$. Hence, the formula follows.

The natural morphism $V_B^G(\lambda) \to V_B^G(w)$ is surjective for all $w \in W$ as it is induced by an injective morphism $M(w \cdot \lambda) \to M(\lambda)$ (cf. Lemma 3.30). Therefore, [43] Theorem 4.6] implies that we obtain all Jordan-Hölder factors of $V_B^G(w)$ in this manner. \Box

2.5 Period domains

In this section we give a brief introduction to our central object of study, the *p*-adic period domain (cf. [41] and [11]). For a more general setting and detailed presentation, we refer the reader to [12].

Let F be an algebraically closed field of characteristic p and $K_0 = \text{Quot}(W(F))$, the quotient field of the ring of Witt vectors of F. Be $K = \mathbb{Q}_p$ with algebraic closure \overline{K}

and absolute Galois group $\Gamma_K = \text{Gal}(\overline{K}/K)$. We denote by C the p-adic completion of \overline{K} . Moreover, let $\sigma \in \text{Aut}(K_0/K)$ be the Frobenius homomorphism and **G** a quasi-split connected reductive group over K.

2.5.1 Filtered isocrystals

An isocrystal over F is a pair (V, Φ) with a finite-dimensional K_0 -vector space V and a σ -linear bijective endomorphism Φ of V. Then, an isocrystal with **G**-structure (also referred to as a **G**-isocrystal) is an exact faithful tensor functor

$$\operatorname{Rep}_K(\mathbf{G}) \longrightarrow \operatorname{Isoc}(F)$$

from the category of finite-dimensional algebraic K-representations to the category of isocrystals over F. In view of [49], Remark 3.4] there exists a very concrete description of **G**-isocrystals which we will sketch. Every **G**-isocrystal is induced by an element $b \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$. Namely, to a finite-dimensional algebraic K-representation (V, ρ) of **G**, we associate

$$N_b(V) := (V \otimes_K K_0, \rho(b)(\mathrm{id}_V \otimes \sigma))$$

which defines an isocrystal over F. The morphisms are mapped under N_b as expected. Thus, N_b is a **G**-isocrystal and $b, b' \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ yield the same **G**-isocrystal if and only if there exists a $g \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ such that $b' = gb\sigma(g)^{-1}$, i.e. if they are σ -conjugated. The set of σ -equivalence classes [b] in $\mathbf{G}(K_0)$ is denoted by $B(\mathbf{G})$ and was introduced by Kottwitz [28, 29]. In [11], Section 3] the authors give several interpretations of this set. Additionally, the **G**-isocrystal N_b comes along with its automorphism group \mathbf{J}_b . It is an algebraic group over K with

$$\mathbf{J}_b(A) = \{g \in \mathbf{G}(K_0 \otimes_K A) \mid gb\sigma(g)^{-1} = b\}$$

for every K-algebra A. It depends only on [b] in view of [50], Section 2.1, p. 280]. As **G** is quasi-split, we know by [28], Section 6] that \mathbf{J}_b is an inner form of a Levi subgroup of **G**; hence \mathbf{J}_b is reductive.

Let L be a field extension of K_0 . A filtered isocrystal $(V, \Phi, \mathcal{F}^{\bullet})$ over L is an isocrystal (V, Φ) over F with a \mathbb{Q} -filtration \mathcal{F}^{\bullet} (decreasing, exhaustive and separated) on V_L . The filtered isocrystal over L form a K-linear quasi-abelian tensor category Fillsoc $_F^L(\Phi)$ (cf. [12], Section VIII, p. 192]). Then, we say that a filtered isocrystal $(V, \Phi, \mathcal{F}^{\bullet})$ over L is weakly admissible if the inequality

$$\sum_{i} i \dim gr^{i}_{\mathcal{F}^{\bullet}(V)}(N' \otimes_{K_{0}} L) \leq \operatorname{ord}_{p} \operatorname{det}(\Phi|N')$$

holds for every subisocrystal N' of (V, Φ) and with equality in case $N' = (V, \Phi)$.

Any 1-PS $\lambda : \mathbb{G}_m \longrightarrow \mathbf{G}_L$ defined over L induces a Z-graded L-vector space

$$V_L = \bigoplus_{i \in \mathbb{Z}} V_i^{\lambda}$$

for a finite-dimensional algebraic K-representation (V, ρ) , where the grading comes from the weight spaces $V_i^{\lambda} = \{v \in V_L \mid \rho(\lambda(s))v = s^i v\}$. Thus, we naturally have a decreasing exhaustive separated \mathbb{Z} -filtration $\mathcal{F}^{\bullet}_{\lambda}(V)$ on V_L given by

$$\mathcal{F}^i_{\lambda}(V) = \bigoplus_{j \ge i} V_j^{\lambda}.$$

Therefore, a tuple $(b, \lambda) \in \mathbf{G}(K_0) \times X_*(\mathbf{G}_L)$ defines a tensor functor

$$\operatorname{Rep}_{K}(\mathbf{G}) \longrightarrow \operatorname{Fillso}_{F}^{L}(\Phi)$$
$$(V, \rho) \longmapsto (N_{b}(V), \mathcal{F}_{\lambda}^{\bullet}(V))$$

Such a pair (b, λ) is weakly admissible if $(N_b(V), \mathcal{F}^{\bullet}_{\lambda}(V))$ is weakly admissible for all $(V, \rho) \in \operatorname{Rep}_K(\mathbf{G})$.

2.5.2 Slope homomorphism and Newton map

A technical issue, which will be important in the upcoming sections, is the *slope* homomorphism ν_b . Let \mathbb{D} be the algebraic pro-torus over K with character group \mathbb{Q} . Kottwitz showed in [28], Section 4] that there exists a unique morphism

$$\nu_b: \mathbb{D}_{K_0} \longrightarrow \mathbf{G}_{K_0}$$

for $b \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ which, by the Tannakian formalism, induces the tensor functor

$$\operatorname{Rep}_{K}(\mathbf{G}) \longrightarrow \operatorname{Grad}(\operatorname{Vec}_{K_{0}}, \mathbb{Q})$$
$$(V, \rho) \longmapsto \bigoplus_{i \in \mathbb{Q}} V_{i}$$

from $\operatorname{Rep}_K(\mathbf{G})$ to the category of \mathbb{Q} -graded K_0 -vector spaces, where the grading comes from the slope decomposition of N_b . Further, it has the properties

$$\nu_{gb\sigma(g)^{-1}} = g\nu_b g^{-1} \text{ for all } g \in \mathbf{G}(K_0), \qquad (2.23)$$

$$\nu_{\sigma(b)} = \sigma(\nu_b) \tag{2.24}$$

(cf. [28], Section 4.4]). By employing both, one obtains $\nu_b = b\sigma(\nu_b)b^{-1}$ and thus, we have a well-defined map

$$B(\mathbf{G}) \longrightarrow [\operatorname{Hom}_{K_0}(\mathbb{D}_{K_0}, \mathbf{G}_{K_0})/\operatorname{Int}(\mathbf{G}(K_0))]^{\sigma=1},$$

$$[b] \longmapsto [v_b]$$

the so called *Newton map*. We will follow [11], Section 3.2.1] and denote the codomain by $\mathcal{N}(\mathbf{G})$, which is also referred to as set of *Newton vectors*.

An element $b \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ is *basic* if ν_b factors through the center of \mathbf{G} which is equivalent to \mathbf{J}_b being an inner form of \mathbf{G} by [28] Section 5.1/5.2]. Moreover, by [28] Section 5.1], ν_b is already defined over K. We say that $[b] \in B(\mathbf{G})$ is *basic* if it contains a basic element. Let s be a positive integer. An element $b \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ is *s*-decent if sv_b factors through the quotient \mathbb{G}_{m,K_0} of \mathbb{D}_{K_0} and the equality

$$(b\sigma)^s = (s\nu_b)(p)\sigma^s$$

holds in $\mathbf{G}(K_0) \rtimes \sigma^{\mathbb{Z}}$. The equivalence class $[b] \in B(\mathbf{G})$ is decent if it contains an s-decent element for some positive integer s (cf. 51, Definition 1.8]). By our assumptions on \mathbf{G} and the algebraically closedness of F, every class $[b] \in B(\mathbf{G})$ is decent (cf. 12, Remark 9.1.34]). In particular, there exists a positive integer s and an s-decent element $b \in [b]$ such that $b \in \mathbf{G}(\mathbb{Q}_{p^s})$ and ν_b is defined over \mathbb{Q}_{p^s} (cf. 51, Corollary 1.9]).

2.5.3 Parameterization of weakly admissible filtrations on isocrystals

In the following, we fix together with **G** an element $b \in \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ and a conjugacy class $\{\mu\} \subset X_*(\mathbf{G})$ over \overline{K} .

The conjugacy class $\{\mu\}$ defines the Shimura field $E := E(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}) \subset \overline{K}$. It is the fixed subfield of \overline{K} under the stabilizer Γ_{μ} of $\{\mu\}$ in Γ_{K} and is a finite extension of K. As \mathbf{G} is quasi-split, $\{\mu\}$ contains an element μ defined over E by [30, Lemma 1.1.3]. Therefore, the associated flag variety $\mathscr{F} := \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\})$, defined over E, can be identified as

$$\mathscr{F} = \mathbf{G}_E / \mathbf{P}(\mu).$$

Let us point out that the \overline{K} -valued points of \mathscr{F} are given by

$$\{\mu\}/\sim$$

where \sim is the par-equivalence relation explained in [11, Section 4.1.2], which identifies the elements of $\{\mu\}$ defining the same filtration on $\operatorname{Rep}_K(\mathbf{G})$. Hence, for a field extension L of E, a point $x \in \mathscr{F}(L)$ gives rise to a cocharacter $\mu_x \in \{\mu\}$ defined over L up to par-equivalence (cf. [12], Remark 6.1.6] for more details).

Setting $\check{E} := EK_0$, we write $\check{\mathscr{F}}$ for the adic analytification of $\mathscr{F}_{\check{E}}$. According to [51], Proposition 1.36 i)], the set $\mathscr{F}_{b}^{\text{wa}} := \mathscr{F}(G, \{\mu\}, b)^{\text{wa}}$ of weakly admissible filtrations with respect to b in \mathscr{F} , i.e.

$$\mathscr{F}_{b}^{\mathrm{wa}}(L) = \{ x \in \mathscr{F}(L) \mid (b, \mu_{x}) \text{ weakly admissible} \}$$

for any field extension L of \check{E} , has the structure of a partially proper open subset of $\check{\mathscr{F}}$. The space $\mathscr{F}_b^{\text{wa}}$ is the *period domain* attached to the triple $(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}, b)$. First, we note that $\mathscr{F}_b^{\text{wa}}$ only depends on $[b] \in B(\mathbf{G})$. Secondly, the natural action of $\mathbf{J}_b(K) \subset \mathbf{G}(K_0)$ on $\check{\mathscr{F}}$ restricts to an action on $\mathscr{F}_b^{\text{wa}}$ (cf. [51], 1.35 and 1.36 i)]).

In the case that b is s-decent, we can regard $\mathscr{F}_b^{\text{wa}}$ as a partially proper open subset defined over $E_s := E\mathbb{Q}_{p^s}$ (cf. [51], Proposition 1.36 ii)]).

2.5.4 Existence of weakly admissible filtrations

Let **B** be a Borel subgroup in **G** and **T** a maximal torus contained in **B**. Further, let $X_*(\mathbf{T})^+_{\mathbb{Q}}$ be the set of dominant rational cocharacters of **T** with respect to **B**. The chosen **B** induces a partial order \leq on $X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ where $\lambda' \leq \lambda$ if and only if $\lambda - \lambda' = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} n_\alpha \alpha^{\vee}$ with all $n_\alpha \in \mathbb{Q}_{\geq 0}$. According to [50], Section 2.1/2.2] (cf. [11], Remark 3.3]), there is a unique $\mu \in \{\mu\}$ and a unique representative $\nu_{[b]} \in [\nu_b]$ for $[b] \in B(\mathbf{G})$ lying in $X_*(\mathbf{T})^+_{\mathbb{Q}}$.

Rapoport and Viehmann associated in 50, Definition 2.3] the set of acceptable elements to a conjugacy class $\{\mu\}$ by setting

$$A(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}) := \{[b] \in B(\mathbf{G}) \mid v_{[b]} \le \overline{\mu}\}$$

where $\overline{\mu} := \frac{1}{[\Gamma_K:\Gamma_{\mu}]} \sum_{\tau \in \Gamma_K/\Gamma_{\mu}} \tau(\mu) \in X_*(\mathbf{T})^+_{\mathbb{Q}}$. We remark that this set is non-empty and finite by [50], Lemma 2.5]. Finally, one obtains the following result.

Theorem 2.41. [12, Theorem 9.5.10] The period domain $\mathscr{F}(G, \{\mu\}, b)^{\text{wa}}$ is non-empty if and only if $[b] \in A(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\})$.

2.5.5 Geometric invariant theory

We recall some notation from [11], Section 5.2.3]. Let $[b] \in B(\mathbf{G})$ be decent and fix an IIP on **G** (cf. section 2.1). Then, there is an ample line bundle $\mathscr{L} := \mathscr{L}_{\mathbf{G},\{\mu\},[b],(,)}$ on $\mathscr{F}_{\check{E}}$ together with the slope function $\mu^{\mathscr{L}}(,)$ (cf. [36], Definition 2.2]) which characterizes weakly admissible points.

Theorem 2.42 (Totaro, 59, Theorem 3], 12, Theorem 9.7.3]). Let L/\check{E} be a field extension and $x \in \mathscr{F}(L)$. Then, $x \in \mathscr{F}_{b}^{\mathrm{wa}}(L)$ if and only if $\mu^{\mathscr{L}}(x,\lambda) \geq 0$ for all $\lambda \in X_{*}(J_{b})^{\Gamma_{\mathbb{Q}_{p}}}$.

2.5.6 Synopsis

The definition of a period domain involves a lot of data which we summarize at this point. Therefore, we recap the notion of a local Shtuka datum from [11], Definiton 4.4] which we adjust to the quasi-split case.

Definition 2.43. [11] Definiton 4.4] A local Shtuka datum over K is a triple $(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}, [b])$ consisting of a quasi-split connected reductive group \mathbf{G} defined over K, a geometric conjugacy class $\{\mu\}$ of cocharacters of \mathbf{G} defined over \overline{K} and a σ -conjugacy class $[b] \in A(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}) \subset B(\mathbf{G})$.

Associated to a local Shtuka datum $(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}, [b])$, we have seen

- 1. the reductive group $\mathbf{J} := \mathbf{J}_b$ over K for $b \in [b]$,
- 2. the Newton vector $[v_b] \in \mathcal{N}(\mathbf{G})$,
- 3. the Shimura field $E := E(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}),$
- 4. the flag variety $\mathscr{F} := \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}) = \mathbf{G}_E / \mathbf{P}(\mu)$ over E,
- 5. the period domain $\mathscr{F}_{b}^{\mathrm{wa}} := \mathscr{F}(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}, b)^{\mathrm{wa}}$ over \check{E} with a $\mathbf{J}(K)$ -action.

3 Cohomological computations

3.1 Setup

In order to apply the results of [43, 44] and ideas of [37], we choose a local Shtuka datum $(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}, [1])$ over $K = \mathbb{Q}_p$ with the additional conditions that \mathbf{G} is split over K and $\mathbf{B} := \mathbf{P}(\mu)$ is a Borel subgroup of \mathbf{G} .

This entails a lot of simplifications. Notice first that $1 \in [1]$ is basic and 1-decent as $\nu := \nu_1$ is trivial. Furthermore, $\mathbf{J} := \mathbf{J}_1 = \mathbf{G}$ by [12], Remark 9.5.9] and E = K since the action of Γ_K is trivial on $\{\mu\}$. Hence, \mathscr{F} and $\mathscr{F}^{\text{wa}} := \mathscr{F}_1^{\text{wa}}$ are defined over K.

We set $n := \dim \mathscr{F}$ and choose a uniformizer π of K. Further, we fix an IIP on \mathbf{G} (cf. section 2.1). We choose a split maximal torus \mathbf{T} of \mathbf{G} of rank d such that $\mu \in X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$. Since all Borel subgroups over K of \mathbf{G} are $\mathbf{G}(K)$ -conjugated (cf. [6], Theorem 20.9]), we can assume that (\mathbf{T}, \mathbf{B}) is a Borel pair (cf. section 2.1). This gives rise to a set of simple roots (cf. section 2.1)

$$\Delta := \{\alpha_1, \ldots, \alpha_d\} \subset X^*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$$

After conjugating μ with an element of W, if necessary, we can assume that μ lies in the positive Weyl chamber with respect to **B**, i.e.

$$\langle \alpha, \mu \rangle > 0 \tag{3.1}$$

for all $\alpha \in \Delta$ (here we used that $\mathbf{P}(\mu) = \mathbf{B}$ to get >). Notice that since \mathbf{G} is split over K we have $\Gamma_{\mu} = \Gamma_{K}$, so $\overline{\mu} = \mu$. By the definition of a local Shtuka datum, $[1] \in A(\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\})$ (cf. section 2.5.4), i.e.

$$\mu = \mu - \nu = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} n_{\alpha} \alpha^{\vee}$$
(3.2)

with $n_{\alpha} \in \mathbb{Q}_{\geq 0}$.

Lemma 3.1. For $\mu = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} n_{\alpha} \alpha^{\vee}$, we have $n_{\alpha} \in \mathbb{Q}_{>0}$.

Proof. Let $\beta \in \Delta$ and consider

$$0 < \langle \beta, \mu \rangle = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} n_{\alpha} \langle \beta, \alpha^{\vee} \rangle = 2n_{\beta} + \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta \setminus \{\beta\}} n_{\alpha} \langle \beta, \alpha^{\vee} \rangle \le 2n_{\beta}$$

where we used that $\langle \beta, \alpha^{\vee} \rangle \leq 0$ for all simple roots $\alpha \neq \beta$ (cf. Lemma 2.2).

Furthermore, let \mathbf{G}_0 be a split reductive group model of \mathbf{G} over \mathcal{O}_K (cf. section 2.1) with Borel pair $(\mathbf{T}_0, \mathbf{B}_0)$ and for each $I \subset \Delta$ a standard parabolic subgroup $\mathbf{P}_{I,0}$ containing \mathbf{B}_0 such that the base change to K yields the pair (\mathbf{T}, \mathbf{B}) and \mathbf{P}_I respectively. As in section 2.4, for any positive number $m \in \mathbb{N}$ let

$$p_m: \mathbf{G}_0(\mathcal{O}_K) \to \mathbf{G}_0(\mathcal{O}_K/(\pi^m))$$

be the natural reduction map. Then, we set $G_0 := \mathbf{G}_0(\mathcal{O}_K)$ and define

$$P_I^m := p_m^{-1}(\mathbf{P}_{I,0}(\mathcal{O}_K/(\pi^m))) \subset G_0$$

Notice that G_0 is compact. Moreover, let $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K} := \mathbf{G}_0 / \mathbf{B}_0$.

For a weight $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})$, let \mathcal{L}_{λ} be the sheaf on \mathscr{F} with

$$\mathcal{L}_{\lambda}(U) = \left\{ f \in \mathcal{O}_{\mathbf{G}}(\pi^{-1}(U)) \mid f(gb) = -\lambda(b)f(g) \text{ for all } g \in \mathbf{G}(\overline{K}), b \in \mathbf{B}(\overline{K}) \right\}$$
(3.3)

for $U \subset \mathscr{F}$ open (cf. [23], Part I, 5.8]; note the sign in the definition). Here, $\pi : \mathbf{G} \to \mathscr{F}$ is the natural projection. It is a locally free sheaf of rank 1 (cf. [23], Part II, 4.1]). For example, $\mathcal{L}_{2\rho} = \omega_{\mathscr{F}}$. We fix a dominant $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$ and set $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda} := \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \otimes \omega_{\mathscr{F}}$.

3.2 Geometrical properties of the complement of \mathscr{F}^{wa}

Following [41], Section 3, p. 536], each $\tau \in X_*(\mathbf{G})_{\mathbb{Q}}$ defines, with respect to section 2.5.5, a closed subvariety of \mathscr{F} by setting

$$Y_{\tau} := \{ x \in \mathscr{F} \mid \mu^{\mathscr{L}}(x,\tau) < 0 \}.$$

Then, for $I \subsetneq \Delta$, we set

$$Y_I := \bigcap_{\alpha \notin I} Y_{\varpi_\alpha} \tag{3.4}$$

which is again a closed subvariety of \mathscr{F} .

Lemma 3.2. [41], Lemma 3.1] Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$. The variety Y_I is defined over K. The natural action of $\mathbf{G}(K)$ on \mathscr{F} restricts to an action of $\mathbf{P}_I(K)$ on Y_I .

Let $Y := \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}} \backslash \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}$. For $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and any subset $W \subset \mathbf{G} / \mathbf{P}_I(K)$, we set

$$Z_I^W := \bigcup_{g \in W} g Y_I^{\mathrm{ad}}$$

which, in view of the previous lemma, is indeed well-defined.

Lemma 3.3. [41, Lemma 3.2] The subset Z_I^W is a closed pseudo-adic subspace of $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}}$ for every compact open subset $W \subset \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_I(K)$.

Then, by [41, Corollary 2.4], we have the following stratification

$$Y = \bigcup_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = 1}} Z_I^{\mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_I(K)}$$

For an alternative description of the Y_I , which will be important hereinafter, we set

$$\Omega_I := \{ w \in W \mid (w\mu, \varpi_\alpha) > 0 \text{ for all } \alpha \notin I \}$$
(3.5)

for $I \subsetneq \Delta$ (cf. [41], p. 530]). Reformulating Lemma 2.7, we get the following statement. Lemma 3.4. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$. Then, $w \in \Omega_I$ if and only if $\langle \check{\varpi}_{\alpha}, w\mu \rangle_{\text{der}} > 0$ for all $\alpha \notin I$. Definition 3.5. Let $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in W^I$. The generalized Schubert cell in \mathscr{F} associated to w is

$$C_I(w) := \mathbf{P}_I w \mathbf{B} / \mathbf{B} = \bigcup_{v \in W_I} C(vw).$$

If $I = \emptyset$, we omit the subscript and call it Schubert cell.

First, it turns out that the Y_I are a union of Schubert cells.

Proposition 3.6. [41, Proposition 4.1] For $I \subsetneq \Delta$, we have

$$Y_I = \bigsqcup_{w \in \Omega_I} C(w).$$

But for our purposes, we need a description in terms of generalized Schubert cells.

Proposition 3.7. For $I \subsetneq \Delta$, we have

$$Y_I = \bigsqcup_{w \in W^I \cap \Omega_I} C_I(w).$$

Proof. We know by 12, Proposition 11.1.6] that $Y_I = \bigcup_{w \in \Omega_I} \mathbf{P}_I w \mathbf{B} / \mathbf{B}$. For $w' \in \Omega_I$ exist unique $w \in W^I$ and $v \in W_I$ such that w' = vw and l(w') = l(v) + l(w). Hence, we have

$$\mathbf{P}_I w' \mathbf{B} / \mathbf{B} = \mathbf{P}_I v w \mathbf{B} / \mathbf{B} = \mathbf{P}_I w \mathbf{B} / \mathbf{B}.$$

Since Y_I is closed, this implies that

$$Y_I = \bigcup_{w \in W^I \cap \,\Omega_I} C_I(w).$$

That the union is disjoint follows from the unique decomposition of $w' \in \Omega_I$ mentioned above and that Schubert cells are disjoint for distinct Weyl group elements.

In addition, we make the following observation for the complement of the Y_I in \mathscr{F} .

Lemma 3.8. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and $w_0 \in W$ the longest element. Then,

$$\mathscr{F}\backslash Y_I = \bigcup_{v \in W \backslash \Omega_I} v w_0 C(w_0).$$

Proof. Let $v \in W$. We first notice that $vw_0C(w_0) = vw_0\mathbf{B}w_0v^{-1}v\mathbf{B}/\mathbf{B}$ is the "coordinate neighbordhood" of $v\mathbf{B}/\mathbf{B}$ in \mathscr{F} , which Kempf describes in [26], Section 3] (cf. [26], Corollary 3.5]). Then, by [26], Proposition 6.3 a)],

$$C(v) \subset vw_0 C(w_0).$$

Hence,

$$\mathscr{F} \backslash Y_I = \bigsqcup_{v \in W \backslash \Omega_I} C(v) \subset \bigcup_{v \in W \backslash \Omega_I} v w_0 C(w_0).$$

For the other inclusion, let $w \in \Omega_I$ and $v \notin \Omega_I$. Then, we consider

$$X := v^{-1}\overline{C(w)} \cap w_0 C(w_0).$$

It is a closed **T**-invariant subset of $w_0C(w_0)$. By [26], Theorem 3.1], this is in bijection to a closed **T**-invariant subset

$$H \subset \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{B}}^{-}$$

Here **T** acts by conjugation. We suppose that X is non-empty. Thus, H is non-empty.

Furthermore, by 58, Exercise 8.4.6 (5)],

$$\mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{B}}^{-}(\overline{K}) = \{g \in \mathbf{G}(\overline{K}) \mid \lim_{t \to 0} (w_0 \mu)(t) g(w_0 \mu)(t)^{-1} = 1\}.$$

As H is closed and **T**-invariant, this description implies that $1 \in H$ (cf. [27], Lemma 9]). Therefore, $\mathbf{B}/\mathbf{B} \in X$ and $v\mathbf{B}/\mathbf{B} \in \overline{C(w)}$, respectively. This implies that $v \leq w$ and therefore $v \in \Omega_I$ since Y_I is closed. That is a contradiction. Hence,

$$C(w) \cap vw_0 C(w_0) = \emptyset$$

which implies

$$Y_I \cap \bigcup_{v \in W \setminus \Omega_I} v w_0 C(w_0) = \emptyset.$$

3.3 Algebraic local cohomology

In this subsection, we consider the local cohomology groups of \mathscr{F} with support in a (generalized) Schubert cell and the Y_I , respectively, with coefficients in \mathcal{E}_{λ} .

For that purpose, we follow the theory of local cohomology as described in [19]. Section 1]. Concretely, let X be a topological space and $Z \subset X$ a locally closed subset, i.e. there is an open subset V such that Z is closed in V. Further, let $\mathcal{E} \in \mathbf{Ab}(X)$ be an abelian sheaf on X. Then, $\Gamma_Z(X, \mathcal{E})$ is the subgroup of $\mathcal{E}(V)$ defined by the sections with support in Z. The definition of $\Gamma_Z(X, \mathcal{E})$ is independent of the chosen open subset V and

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{Ab}(X) &\longrightarrow \mathbf{Ab} \\ F &\longmapsto \Gamma_Z(X, \mathcal{E}) \end{aligned}$$

defines a left exact covariant functor. Thus, we let the *local cohomology groups* $H_Z^*(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E})$ be the right derived functors of $\Gamma_Z(X, -)$. An essential property that we take advantage of is the following.

Proposition 3.9. [19, Proposition 1.3] Let Z be locally closed in X, and let V be open in X and such that $Z \subseteq V \subset X$. Then, for any $\mathcal{E} \in \mathbf{Ab}(X)$,

$$H^i_Z(X,\mathcal{E}) \cong H^i_Z(V,\mathcal{E}|_V).$$

For two closed subsets $Z_1, Z_2 \subset X$ with $Z_1 \subset Z_2$, we let

$$\Gamma_{Z_1/Z_2}(X,\mathcal{E}) := \Gamma_{Z_1}(X,\mathcal{E})/\Gamma_{Z_2}(X,\mathcal{E}).$$

Then, $H^*_{Z_1/Z_2}(X, \mathcal{E})$ denotes the right derived functor of $\Gamma_{Z_1/Z_2}(X, -)$ as defined in [26, Section 7, p. 349/350]. It comes with the following property.

Lemma 3.10. [26, Lemma 7.7] Let $Z_1 \supset Z_2$ be two closed subsets of a topological space X. Let \mathcal{E} be any abelian sheaf on X. Then, there is a natural isomorphism

$$H^i_{Z_1/Z_2}(X,\mathcal{E}) \longrightarrow H^i_{Z_1\setminus Z_2}(X\setminus Z_2,\mathcal{E})$$

for all integers i.

Next, we state a rather technical result which will be helpful afterwards. It seems somehow standard as it is for example used in [37] and [13]. Section 2.1], but we could not find a precise statement fitting our purposes.

Lemma 3.11. Let $X \supset Z_0 \supset Z_1 \supset \ldots \supset Z_n$ be a filtration of X by closed subsets and \mathcal{E} an abelian sheaf on X. Then, there is a spectral sequence

$$E_1^{pq} = H^{p+q}_{Z_p/Z_{p+1}}(X, \mathcal{E}) \Rightarrow H^{p+q}_{Z_0}(X, \mathcal{E}),$$

where the morphisms on the E_1 -page are the natural ones.

Proof. We associate to \mathcal{E} a complex of flasque sheaves $\mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E})$ on X together with an augmentation map $\mathcal{E} \to \mathcal{G}^{0}(\mathcal{E})$ such that $\mathcal{E} \to \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E})$ is a resolution of \mathcal{E} (cf. 14). As Kempf pointed out in 26, Section 7, p. 350], we can use this resolution to compute the local cohomology groups in question.

The given filtration on X naturally defines a filtration of complexes

$$\Gamma_{Z_0}(X, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E})) \supset \Gamma_{Z_1}(X, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E})) \supset \ldots \supset \Gamma_{Z_n}(X, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E}))$$

from which we form the following quotient complexes

$$0 \to \Gamma_{Z_{j+1}}(X, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E})) \to \Gamma_{Z_j}(X, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E})) \to K_j^{\bullet} \to 0.$$
(3.6)

Notice that by [26, Section 7], one has $K_j^{\bullet} = \Gamma_{Z_j/Z_{j+1}}(X, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{E}))$ such that

$$H^q(K_j^{\bullet}) = H^q_{Z_j/Z_{j+1}}(X, \mathcal{E}).$$

Then, by the procedure explained in 52, Section 3, we get an exact complex of complexes

$$0 \to \Gamma_{Z_0}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{G}^{\bullet}(\mathcal{F})) \to \tilde{K}_0^{\bullet} \to \tilde{K}_1^{\bullet}[1] \to \tilde{K}_2^{\bullet}[2] \to \ldots \to \tilde{K}_n^{\bullet}[n] \to 0$$
(3.7)

where \tilde{K}_{j}^{\bullet} is a complex quasi-isomorphic to K_{j}^{\bullet} . Moreover, the morphisms $\tilde{K}_{j}^{\bullet} \to \tilde{K}_{j+1}^{\bullet}[1]$ induces the natural homomorphisms $H_{Z_{j}/Z_{j+1}}^{q}(X, \mathcal{E}) \to H_{Z_{j+1}/Z_{j+2}}^{q+1}(X, \mathcal{E})$ which are given by the connecting homomorphisms coming from the long exact sequence in cohomology of (cf. (3.6)) followed by the quotient maps.

Thus, (3.7) yields a double complex

$$C^{\bullet,\bullet}: \tilde{K}_0^{\bullet} \to \tilde{K}_1^{\bullet}[1] \to \tilde{K}_2^{\bullet}[2] \to \ldots \to \tilde{K}_n^{\bullet}[n].$$

Then, by combining the properties mentioned above with the usual theory of spectal sequences associated to a double complex, we obtain the result we were looking for. \Box

We come back to our setting. We have seen in section 2.1 that there is a split connected reductive algebraic group \mathscr{G} over \mathbb{Z} with split maximal torus \mathscr{T} and Borel \mathscr{B} such that $\mathscr{G}_K = \mathbf{G}, \mathscr{T}_K = \mathbf{T}$ and $\mathscr{B}_K = \mathbf{B}$. Let $\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}} := \mathscr{G}/\mathscr{B}$ and

$$C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}} := \mathscr{B}w\mathscr{B}/\mathscr{B} \subset \mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}}$$

for $w \in W$. They are flat Z-schemes by 23, Part I, Section 5.7 (2). Moreover,

$$\mathscr{F} = (\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}})_K$$
 and $C(w) = (C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}})_K$.

The first identity follows from the fact that the base change commutes with the quotient (cf. [23], Part I, Section 5.5 (4)]). The latter one can be seen after idenditifying both sides with affine spaces (cf. [23], Part II, Section 13.3 (1)]). In [25], Section 3] it is mentioned that the flag varieties and Schubert cells admit "flat lifts to Z-schemes". Furthermore, as described in [26], Section 13, p. 389] (cf. [23], Part I, Section 5.8]), we have an invertible sheaf $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}}$ on $\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}}$ which is defined similarly to \mathcal{E}_{λ} . The same arguments apply if we assume that **G** and all introduced objects are defined over \mathbb{Q} and \mathbb{C} , respectively. We denote the ground field, if it is not K, as a subscript in the following proof.

Then, we have the following two identifications of local cohomology groups on \mathscr{F} . They are already known over \mathbb{C} (cf. [37], (3.3)] and [37], Theorem 1 & Theorem 3]).

Lemma 3.12. For $w \in W$, one has

$$H^{i}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \begin{cases} M(w \cdot \lambda) & i = n - l(w), \\ 0 & else \end{cases}$$

in \mathcal{O}_{alg} .

Proof. As C(w) is affine, it follows that $H^i_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = 0$ for $i \neq n - l(w)$ (cf. [26, Theorem 10.9]). Since \mathcal{E}_{λ} has a natural \mathfrak{g} -module structure (cf. [39, Section 1.2]), we see by functoriality that $H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ is a \mathfrak{g} -module. Furthermore, by [26, Lemma 12.8.], we have that $H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ is t-semisimple and

$$\operatorname{ch}(H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})) = \operatorname{ch}(M(w \cdot \lambda)).$$

This implies that $H_{C(w)}^{n-l(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ lies in the category \mathcal{O}_{alg} (cf. [1, Example 1.1]). In particular for w = e, we see by the last remark in [26, Section 12] and the proof of [39, Proposition 1.4.2] that

$$H^{n}_{C(e)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong H^{n}_{C(e)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{O}_{\mathscr{F}}) \otimes_{\mathbb{Q}_{p}} (\mathbb{Q}_{p})_{2\rho+\lambda} \cong M(-2\rho)^{\vee} \otimes_{\mathbb{Q}_{p}} (\mathbb{Q}_{p})_{2\rho+\lambda}$$
$$\cong M(-2\rho) \otimes_{\mathbb{Q}_{p}} (\mathbb{Q}_{p})_{2\rho+\lambda} \cong M(\lambda)$$

holds in the category \mathcal{O}_{alg} . Here, we used [8, Proposition 7] for the second isomorphism and the fact that -2ρ is antidominant for the third. Thus, by Lemma 2.16, it remains to prove that there is a non-trivial injective morphism

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \longrightarrow H^{n}_{C(e)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$
(3.8)

For this, let $k \in \{K, \mathbb{Q}, \mathbb{C}\}$. Further, we let $X_1 := \overline{C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}}}$ and $X_2 := X_1 \setminus C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}}$. By Lemma 3.10 and Proposition 3.9, we have

$$H^{q}_{C(w)\mathbb{Z}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}}\otimes k)\cong H^{q}_{X_{1}/X_{2}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}}\otimes k) \text{ and } H^{q}_{C(w)_{k}}(\mathscr{F}_{k},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,k})\cong H^{q}_{X_{1,k}/X_{2,k}}(\mathscr{F}_{k},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,k})$$

Then, by [26, Lemma 13.8], we obtain an isomorphism

$$H^q_{C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}}\otimes k)\cong H^q_{C(w)_k}(\mathscr{F}_k,\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,k})$$

of k-vector spaces. As $\mathcal{O}_{\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}}}$ is flat over \mathbb{Z} and $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}}$ is locally free, it follows that $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}}$ is flat over \mathbb{Z} since it is a local property. Following [25], Section 4], this yields a spectral sequence

$$E_2^{p,q} = \operatorname{Tor}_{-p}^{\mathbb{Z}} (H^q_{C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{Z}}), k) \Rightarrow H^{p+q}_{C(w)_k}(\mathscr{F}_k, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, k}).$$

Since k is flat over \mathbb{Z} , we have an isomorphism

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)_{\mathbb{Z}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Z}})\otimes k\cong H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)_{k}}(\mathscr{F}_{k},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,k})$$

of k-vector spaces. This implies

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)\mathbb{C}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{C}}) \cong H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)\mathbb{Q}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) \otimes_{\mathbb{Q}} \mathbb{C}$$
(3.9)

and

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)\mathbb{Q}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) \otimes_{\mathbb{Q}} K.$$
(3.10)

If we choose $X_1 = \mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Z}}$ and $X_2 = \emptyset$ instead, then using the same arguments as before, we get that

$$H^{q}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{C}}) \cong H^{q}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) \otimes \mathbb{C}$$

$$(3.11)$$

for all integers q. Next, let $Z_j \subset \mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}$ be the union of the closure of Schubert cells of codimension greater than or equal to j. This defines a filtration on $\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}$ by closed subsets

$$\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}} = Z_0 \supset Z_1 \supset \ldots \supset Z_n = C(e)_{\mathbb{Q}}.$$
 (3.12)

Furthermore,

$$Z_j \setminus Z_{j+1} = \bigsqcup_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w) = n-j}} C(w)_{\mathbb{Q}}.$$

Then, we get, by Lemma 3.10 and Proposition 3.9 (cf. [26, p. 385]), that

$$H^{i}_{Z_{j}\setminus Z_{j+1}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) \cong \bigoplus_{\substack{w\in W\\l(w)=n-j}} H^{i}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}})$$

for all integers *i*. Thus, by Lemma 3.11 and Lemma 3.12, we can compute $H^*(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}})$ by the complex

$$\bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w)=n}} H^0_{C(w)_{\mathbb{Q}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{Q}}) \to \dots \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w)=1}} H^{n-1}_{C(w)_{\mathbb{Q}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{Q}}) \to H^n_{C(e)_{\mathbb{Q}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{Q}}).$$
(3.13)

On the other hand, we have by Serre duality (cf. [23], Part II, 4.2 (9)], note that the setting in loc. cit. induces different signs) that

$$H^{i}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) = H^{i}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{L}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}\otimes\omega_{\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}}) \cong (H^{n-i}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},(\mathcal{L}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}})^{\vee}))' = (H^{n-i}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{L}_{-\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}))'.$$

For the latter one, the Borel-Weil-Bott theorem (cf. [23] Part II, Corollary 5.5], note again the setting in loc.cit) gives $H^i(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}, \mathcal{L}_{-\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) = 0$ for $i \neq 0$. Hence, the complex (3.13) is a resolution of $H^n(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}})$. By (3.9), (3.11) and (faithfully) flatness of field extensions, we get an acyclic complex

$$0 \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w)=n}} H^0_{C(w)_{\mathbb{C}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{C}}) \to \dots \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w)=1}} H^{n-1}_{C(w)_{\mathbb{C}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{C}}) \to H^n(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda, \mathbb{C}}) \to 0.$$
(3.14)

Again by the Borel-Weil-Bott theorem, we know that $H^n(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{C}}) = L(\lambda)_{\mathbb{C}}$. Here $L(\lambda)_{\mathbb{C}}$ is the unique simple quotient of the Verma module $M(\lambda)_{\mathbb{C}}$ in the usual BGG Category \mathcal{O} over the complex numbers (cf. [22, Section 1.3]). Then, by [37, (3.3)], we have

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)\mathbb{C}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{C}})\cong M(w\cdot\lambda)_{\mathbb{C}}$$

for all $w \in W$. Therefore, the complex (3.14) is a BGG resolution of $L(\lambda)_{\mathbb{C}}$ (cf. [22, Section 6.1]). Thus, by [22, Theorem, Section 6.8], the natural morphism

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)_{\mathbb{C}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{C}}) \longrightarrow H^{n-l(w')}_{C(w')_{\mathbb{C}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{C}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{C}})$$

is non-trivial for $w' \leq w$ with l(w) = l(w) + 1. Moreover, it is injective by [22], Theorem, Section 4.2]. This implies that the morphism

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)_{\mathbb{Q}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}}) \longrightarrow H^{n-l(w')}_{C(w')_{\mathbb{Q}}}(\mathscr{F}_{\mathbb{Q}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda,\mathbb{Q}})$$

in the complex (3.13) was already injective by the faithfully flatness of field extensions. Again by the faithfully flatness and by (3.10), we get an injective morphism

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \longleftrightarrow H^{n-l(w')}_{C(w')'}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

for all $w, w' \in W$ with $w' \leq w$ and l(w) = l(w') + 1. Let $w \in W$ with reduced expression $w = s_1 \dots s_t$ and let $w_i := s_1 \dots s_i$, i.e. $w = w_t$. Then, we get the desired morphism (3.8) from the sequence of injections

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \hookrightarrow H^{n-l(w_{t-1})}_{C(w_{t-1})}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \hookrightarrow \ldots \hookrightarrow H^{n}_{C(e)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

Similiar to Lemma 3.12, we have the following identification for generalized Schubert cells.

Lemma 3.13. For $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in W^I$, one has

$$H^{i}_{C_{I}(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \begin{cases} M_{I}(w \cdot \lambda) & i = n - l(w), \\ 0 & else \end{cases}$$

in $\mathcal{O}_{\mathrm{alg}}^{\mathfrak{p}_I}$.

Proof. Over \mathbb{C} this is [37], Theorem 1/Theorem 3]. The arguments of loc. cit. are applicable as well. For completeness, we will recall them.

Let Z_j be the union of the closure of Schubert cells of codimension greater than or equal to j and $U_w = \mathscr{F} \setminus (\overline{C_I(w)} \setminus C_I(w))$. Hence, $C_I(w)$ is closed in the open subset U_w . Let $r_I := \dim(\mathbf{P}_I/\mathbf{B})$ and $t := n - l(w) - r_I$. Then, we consider the filtration on U_w by closed subsets

$$U_w \supset C_I(w) \supset C_I(w) \cap Z_{t+1} \supset \ldots \supset C_I(w) \cap Z_{r_I+t} = C(w).$$
(3.15)

As

$$(C_I(w) \cap Z_{t+j}) \setminus (C_I(w) \cap Z_{t+j+1}) = C_I(w) \cap (Z_{t+j} \setminus Z_{t+j+1}) = \bigsqcup_{\substack{v \in W_I \\ l(v) = r_I - j}} C(vw),$$

we get, as in Lemma 3.12, that

$$H^{i}_{(C_{I}(w)\cap Z_{t+j})/(C_{I}(w)\cap Z_{t+j+1})}(U_{w},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \bigoplus_{\substack{v \in W_{I} \\ l(v)=r_{I}-j}} H^{i}_{C(vw)}(U_{w},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

for all integers i. Notice that by Proposition 3.9, we have

$$H^{i}_{C(vw)}(U_w, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong H^{i}_{C(vw)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

Then, applying Lemma 3.11 to (3.15) and taking Lemma 3.12 into account, we see that the cochain complex

$$\bigoplus_{\substack{v \in W_I \\ l(v)=r_I}} M(v \cdot \lambda) \to \dots \to \bigoplus_{\substack{v \in W_I \\ l(v)=1}} M(v \cdot \lambda) \to M(\lambda), \tag{3.16}$$

starting in degree t, computes $H^*_{C_I(w)}(U_w, \mathcal{E}_\lambda)$, and therefore, by Proposition 3.9, also $H^*_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_\lambda)$. Then, by the work of Lepowsky (cf. 32, p. 506, Proof of Theorem 4.3]), we get

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong M_I(w \cdot \lambda)$$

On the other hand, the complex (3.16) is obtained from the BGG-resolution of $V_I(\lambda)$ by Verma modules for L_{P_I} by tensoring with $U(\mathfrak{g})$ over $U(\mathfrak{p}_I)$. This functor preserves exactness. Therefore, $H^i_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = 0$ for $i \neq n - l(w)$.

Another application of Lemma 3.11 is the computation of the local cohomology groups $H^*_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}).$

Lemma 3.14. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$, $d_I := \dim(Y_I)$ and $r_I := \dim(\mathbf{P}_I/\mathbf{B})$. Then, the cochain complex

$$C_{I}^{\bullet}: \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W^{I} \cap \Omega_{I} \\ l(w)=d_{I}-r_{I}}} H_{C_{I}(w)}^{n-l(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W^{I} \cap \Omega_{I} \\ l(w)=d_{I}-r_{I}-1}} H_{C_{I}(w)}^{n-l(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to \ldots \to H_{C_{I}(e)}^{n}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}),$$

with the natural morphisms starting in degree $n + r_I - d_I$, computes the cohomology groups $H^j_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$. More specifically, $H^j(C^{\bullet}_I) = H^j_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$.

Proof. Let \hat{Z}_j be the closure of the union of those P_I -orbits $C_I(w)$ whose codimension is greater or equal to j. This defines a filtration

$$\mathscr{F} = \widetilde{Z}_0 \supset \widetilde{Z}_1 \supset \ldots \supset \widetilde{Z}_{n-r}$$

by closed subsets. Then, we consider the filtration of closed subsets on Y_I induced by setting $Z_j := Y_I \cap \tilde{Z}_{n-d_I+j}$

$$Y_I = Z_0 \supset Z_1 \supset \ldots \supset Z_{d_I} \tag{3.17}$$

where, by Lemma 3.7, one has

$$Z_j \setminus Z_{j+1} = \bigsqcup_{\substack{w \in W^I \cap \Omega_I \\ l(w) = d_I - r_I - j}} C_I(w).$$

Therefore, as in the proof of Lemma 3.12, we obtain that

$$H^{i}_{Z_{j}/Z_{j+1}}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W^{I} \cap \Omega_{I} \\ l(w) = d_{I} - r_{I} - j}} H^{i}_{C_{I}(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

for all integers *i*. Applying Lemma 3.11 to the filtration (3.17) and \mathcal{E}_{λ} , and taking Lemma 3.13 into account, we see that the induced spectral sequence

$$E_1^{pq} = H^{p+q}_{Z_p/Z_{p+1}}(X, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \Rightarrow H^{p+q}_{Y_I}(X, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

degenerates at the E_2 -page. Thus, the result follows.

Remark 3.15. As pointet out in [37], Theorem 2], the morphisms

$$H^{n-l(w)}_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to H^{n-l(w')}_{C_I(w')}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

for $w' \leq w$ with l(w) = l(w') + 1 that appear in the differentials are those from the Lepowsky BGG resolution (cf. [32], Theorem 4.3]).

Corollary 3.16. For each $i \in \mathbb{N}_0$, the $U(\mathfrak{g})$ -module $H^i_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ lies in $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}_I}_{alg}$.

Proof. As the category $\mathcal{O}_{alg}^{\mathfrak{p}_I}$ is closed under taking submodules and quotients, this follows immediately from Lemma 3.13 and 3.14.

3.4 Analytic local cohomology

In the following, we would like to relate the algebraic local cohomology groups of \mathscr{F} with support in the Y_I and coefficients in \mathcal{E}_{λ} to some analytic local cohomology groups of \mathscr{F}^{rig} .

For this, we recall first from [39, Section 1.3] what we mean by analytic local cohomology. Let X be a rigid analytic variety over K and $U \subset X$ an admissible open subset with $Z := X \setminus U$, the set theoretical complement. Further, be \mathcal{E} be a coherent sheaf on X. Then, similar to the last section, we define

$$\Gamma_Z(X,\mathcal{E}) := \ker(\Gamma(X,\mathcal{E}) \to \Gamma(U,\mathcal{E}))$$

1		_		
	L			

and $H_Y^*(X, \mathcal{G})$ to be the right derived functors. In case X is a separated rigid analytic variety of countable type, the local cohomology groups carry a natural structure of a locally convex K-vector space which is in general not Hausdorff (cf. [39, Section 1.3], [47], Section 1.6]).

For our purposes, we fix an embedding

$$\iota:\mathscr{F}\hookrightarrow\mathbb{P}^N_K$$

defined by the vanishing ideal $\mathscr{I} \subset \mathcal{O}_K[T_0, \ldots, T_N]$.

Now, we introduce, adapted from [42] Section 2, p. 1398], the notion of special neighborhoods of a closed subvariety of \mathscr{F} . They play a crucial role in the computation of the cohomology of a period domain.

Definition 3.17. Let $\epsilon \in |\overline{K}^{\times}|$. Let $Y \subset \mathscr{F}$ be a closed subvariety and $f_1, \ldots, f_r \in \mathcal{O}_K[T_0, \ldots, T_N]$ homogeneous polynomials such that they generate the vanishing ideal of the Zariski closure of Y in $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}$. Additionally, each f_i has at least one coefficient in \mathcal{O}_K^{\times} .

- i) We call a tuple $(z_0, \ldots, z_N) \in \mathbb{A}_K^{N+1}(C)$ unimodular if $z_i \in \mathcal{O}_C$ for all i and there exists an i such that $z_i \in \mathcal{O}_C^{\times}$.
- ii) We define the open ϵ -neighborhood of Y in $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}$ by

 $Y(\epsilon) := \Big\{ z \in \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \, \Big| \, \text{for any unimodular representative } \tilde{z} \text{ of } z, \text{ we have} \\ |f_j(\tilde{z})| \le \epsilon \text{ for all } j \Big\}.$

iii) We define the closed ϵ -neighborhood of Y in $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}$ by

$$\begin{split} Y^-(\epsilon) &:= \Big\{ z \in \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \, \Big| \, \mathrm{for \ any \ unimodular \ representative \ } \tilde{z} \ \mathrm{of} \ z, \, \mathrm{we \ have} \\ &|f_j(\tilde{z})| < \epsilon \ \mathrm{for \ all} \ j \Big\}. \end{split}$$

Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and $i \in \mathbb{N}_0$. We know from Corollary 3.16 that $H^i_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \in \mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}_I}_{alg}$. Thus, we have an $\mathcal{O}^{\mathfrak{p}_I}_{alg}$ -pair $(H^i_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}), W)$ with a short exact sequence

$$0 \to \mathfrak{d} \to U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_{I}}^{-}) \otimes_{K} W \longrightarrow H^{i}_{Y_{I}}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to 0.$$
(3.18)

Let $\epsilon_m := |\pi^m|$ for $m \in \mathbb{N}$. In section 2.4 we equipped $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_I}^-)$ with a norm $||_{\frac{1}{\epsilon_m}}$ (cf. (2.19)). This naturally defines a norm on $U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_I}^-) \otimes_K W$ and induces, by (3.18), the quotient norm on $H^i_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$. Since the quotient map is open, it is strict (cf. [7], Section 1.1.9, Proposition 3 ii)]) and we obtain, by [7] Section 1.1.9, Corollary 6], a short exact sequence of K-Banach spaces

$$0 \longrightarrow \mathfrak{d}_m \longrightarrow U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_I}^-)_m \otimes_K W \longrightarrow \hat{H}^i_{Y_I,m} \longrightarrow 0$$
(3.19)

(cf. (2.20) for the notation). Here $\hat{H}^i_{Y_I,m}$ denotes the completion of $H^i_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ with respect to the quotient norm.

Moreover, we define $D_w := ww_0 C(w_0)$ and $H_w := \mathscr{F} \setminus D_w$ for $w \in W$. By Lemma 3.8, we know that

$$\mathscr{F} \backslash Y_I = \bigcup_{w \in W \backslash \Omega_I} D_w \tag{3.20}$$

which is an affine open covering of the complement because $C(w_0)$ is affine open. Thus, we can compute $H^*(\mathscr{F} \setminus Y_I, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ by the Čech-complex

$$\bigoplus_{w \in W \setminus \Omega_I} \Gamma(D_w, \mathcal{E}_\lambda) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w, w' \in W \setminus \Omega_I \\ w \neq w'}} \Gamma(D_w \cap D_{w'}, \mathcal{E}_\lambda) \to \ldots \to \Gamma(\bigcap_{w \in W \setminus \Omega_I} D_w, \mathcal{E}_\lambda).$$

Furthermore, we can easily deduce from (3.20) that for $\epsilon \in |\overline{K^{\times}}|$, we have

$$Y_I^-(\epsilon) = \bigcap_{w \in W \setminus \Omega_I} H_w^-(\epsilon).$$

Therefore, we consider the subset

$$D_{w,\epsilon} := \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \backslash H_w^-(\epsilon)$$

for $w \in W$.

Lemma 3.18. Let $w \in W$. The subset $D_{w,\epsilon}$ is affinoid.

Proof. Since H_w is of codimension 1, there is $f \in \mathcal{O}_K[T_0, \ldots, T_N]$ homogenous of degree t with at least one coefficient in \mathcal{O}_K^{\times} and generating the vanishing ideal of the Zariski closure of H_w in $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}$. Let $N_0 := \binom{n+t}{t} - 1$. We embed \mathbb{P}_K^N into $\mathbb{P}_K^{N_0}$ via the t-th Veronese embedding. Then, by substituting monomials, f yields a homogeneous linear polynomial $g \in \mathcal{O}_K[T_0, \ldots, T_{N_0}]$ defining a hyperplane $H_0 \subset \mathbb{P}_K^{N_0}$, such that

$$H_w = \mathscr{F} \cap H_0$$

It is known that $(\mathbb{P}_{K}^{N_{0}})^{\operatorname{rig}} \setminus H_{0}^{-}(\epsilon)$ is affinoid (cf. 55, Section 1, Proof of Proposition 4]) and we notice that

$$\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus \left(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \cap H_0^-(\epsilon) \right) = \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \cap \left((\mathbb{P}_K^{N_0})^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus H_0^-(\epsilon) \right)$$

Thus, $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus \left(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \cap H_0^-(\epsilon) \right)$ is also affinoid since it is a zero set in $(\mathbb{P}_K^{N_0})^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus H_0^-(\epsilon)$. \Box However, we have $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \cap H_0^-(\epsilon) = H_w^-(\epsilon)$. \Box

This results in the affinoid covering

$$\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus Y_I^-(\epsilon) = \bigcup_{w \in W \setminus \Omega_I} D_{w,\epsilon}$$

which has two consequences. On the one hand we get an admissible covering

$$\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \backslash Y_{I}(\epsilon_{m}) = \bigcup_{\substack{\epsilon \to \epsilon_{m} \\ \epsilon_{m} < \epsilon \in |\overline{K^{\times}}|}} \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \backslash Y_{I}^{-}(\epsilon)$$

by quasi-compact admissible open subsets (cf. [39, Section 1.3, p. 601]). On the other

hand we can compute $H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus Y_I^-(\epsilon), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ by the Čech-complex

$$\bigoplus_{w \in W \setminus \Omega_I} \Gamma(D_{w,\epsilon}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w, w' \in W \setminus \Omega_I \\ w \neq w'}} \Gamma(D_{w,\epsilon} \cap D_{w',\epsilon}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to \dots \to \Gamma(\bigcap_{w \in W \setminus \Omega_I} D_{w,\epsilon}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

which terms are K-Banach spaces. So far, we have to make the following assumption and conjecture (cf. [39], Lemma 1.3.1]).

Assumption/Conjecture 3.19. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and $i \in \mathbb{N}_0$. Both, the cohomology groups $H^i(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus Y_I^-(\epsilon), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$, and $H^i_{Y_I^-(\epsilon)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ are K-Banach spaces in which the algebraic cohomology group $H^i(\mathscr{F} \setminus Y_I, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ and $H^i_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$, respectively, is a dense subspace. Moreover, we have an isomorphism of topological K-vector spaces

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} H^i_{Y^-_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \hat{H}^i_{Y_I, m}.$$

Corollary 3.20. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$. For $i \in \mathbb{N}_0$, we have the following isomorphisms of topological K-vector spaces:

$$H^{i}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}\backslash Y_{I}(\epsilon_{m}), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \lim_{\substack{\epsilon \to \epsilon_{m} \\ \epsilon_{m} < \epsilon \in |\overline{K^{\times}}|}} H^{i}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}\backslash Y_{I}^{-}(\epsilon), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

and

$$H^{i}_{Y_{I}(\epsilon_{m})}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \lim_{\substack{\epsilon \to \epsilon_{m} \\ \epsilon_{m} < \epsilon \in |\overline{K^{\times}}|}} H^{i}_{Y_{I}^{-}(\epsilon)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

Proof. The proof is same as that of [39, Lemma 1.3.2].

Lemma 3.21. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and $m \in \mathbb{N}$. Then, the subset $Y_I(\epsilon_m)$ is P_I^m -invariant.

Proof. We identify $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}$ with the closed points of \mathscr{F} , i.e. for $x \in \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}$ exists a finite extension L := k(x) of K such that $x \in \mathscr{F}(L)$. Denote by $| \mid_L$ be the unique absolute value on L which extends the valuation on K. Since $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}$ is proper over \mathcal{O}_K , we have $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}(O_L) = \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}(L) = \mathscr{F}(L)$. Let

 $q_{m,L}: \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}(\mathcal{O}_L) \to \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}(\mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m \mathcal{O}_L)$

be the natural projection. The (free) action of \mathbf{G}_0 on $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}$ induces the commutative diagram

$$\begin{array}{ccc} \mathbf{G}_{0}(\mathcal{O}_{L}) \times \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_{K}}(\mathcal{O}_{L}) & \xrightarrow{\mathrm{murt.}} & \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_{K}}(\mathcal{O}_{L}) \\ & & & & \downarrow^{q_{m,L}} \\ \mathbf{G}_{0}(\mathcal{O}_{L}/\pi^{m}\mathcal{O}_{L}) \times \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_{K}}(\mathcal{O}_{L}/\pi^{m}\mathcal{O}_{L}) & \xrightarrow{\mathrm{mult.}} & \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_{K}}(\mathcal{O}_{L}/\pi^{m}\mathcal{O}_{L}). \end{array}$$

Moreover, it is clear that $Y_{I,0} := \bigcup_{w \in \Omega_I} \mathbf{B}_0 w \mathbf{B}_0 / \mathbf{B}_0$ is the Zariski closure of Y_I in $\mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}$ defined by homogenous polynomial $f_1, \ldots, f_r \in \mathcal{O}_K[T_0, \ldots, T_N]$ as in Definition 3.17. Then, $Y_{I,0}$ is $\mathbf{P}_{I,0}$ invariant (cf. Proposition 3.7). Therefore, the above diagram implies that

$$P_I^m \cdot q_{m,L}^{-1} (Y_{I,0}(\mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m \mathcal{O}_L)) = q_{m,L}^{-1} (Y_{I,0}(\mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m \mathcal{O}_L)).$$
(3.21)

37

Next we will show that

$$q_{m,L}^{-1}(Y_{I,0}(\mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m\mathcal{O}_L)) = \{ y \in \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}(\mathcal{O}_L) \mid |f_i(y)|_L \le \epsilon_m \text{ for all } i \} = Y_I(\epsilon_m)(L).$$

Let $y \in \mathscr{F}_{\mathcal{O}_K}(\mathcal{O}_L)$. If $y \in q_{m,L}^{-1}(Y_{I,0}(\mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m \mathcal{O}_L))$, it follows that $f_i(q_{m,L}(y)) = 0$ for all i. But

$$f_i(q_{m,L}(y)) = [f_i(y)] \in \mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m \mathcal{O}_L.$$

Hence, $f_i(y) \in \pi^m \mathcal{O}_L$ and $|f_i(y)|_L \leq \epsilon_m$ for all *i*. If, on the other hand, $|f_i(y)|_L \leq \epsilon_m$ for all *i*, we deduce that $f_i(y) \in \pi^m \mathcal{O}_L$ for all *i*. Thus, $f_i(q_{m,L}(y)) = [f_i(y)] = 0$ for all *i* and $y \in q_{m,L}^{-1}(Y_{I,0}(\mathcal{O}_L/\pi^m \mathcal{O}_L))$.

From that we conclude that $Y_I(\epsilon_m)(L)$ is P_I^m -invariant for all finite extensions L of K. This implies that $Y_I(\epsilon_m)$ is P_I^m -invariant.

The previous lemma yields a P_I^m -module structure on $H^i_{Y_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$.

Lemma 3.22. For $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and $i \in \mathbb{N}_0$, we have

$$\Big(\varprojlim_{m\in\mathbb{N}}\operatorname{Ind}_{P_{I}^{m}}^{G_{0}}(H^{i}_{Y_{I}(\epsilon_{m})}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}))\Big)'=\mathcal{F}_{P_{I}}^{G}(H^{i}_{Y_{I}}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})).$$

Proof. We know from (3.19), that

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \left(U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_{I}}^{-})_{m} \otimes_{K} W/\mathfrak{d}_{m} \right) \cong \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \hat{H}^{i}_{Y_{I},m}$$

Furthermore, by Assumption 3.19 and in view of Corollary 3.20, we have

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} H^{i}_{Y_{I}(\epsilon_{m})}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \left(U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_{I}}^{-})_{m} \otimes_{K} W/\mathfrak{d}_{m} \right)$$

compatible with the action of $\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} P_I^m = P_{I,0}$ (cf. [39, Proposition 1.3.10 + Proof]). Then, we get (cf. [39, p. 633])

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \operatorname{Ind}_{P_{I}^{m}}^{G_{0}} \left(H_{Y_{I}(\epsilon_{m})}^{i}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \right) \cong \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \operatorname{Ind}_{P_{I}^{m}}^{G_{0}} \left(U(\mathfrak{u}_{\mathbf{P}_{I}}^{-})_{m} \otimes_{K} W/\mathfrak{d}_{m} \right).$$

Passing to the dual, which is exact on K-Fréchet spaces (cf. [2], Section I, Corollary 1.4]), the required statement follows from Proposition 2.32.

3.5 Results

We start by recalling Orlik's fundamental complex on $Y_{\acute{e}t}$, the étale site on Y. This is taken from [11, Section 6.2.1/6.2.2] which is based on [41, Section 3].

For the constant étale sheaf $\mathbb{Z} \in \text{Sh}(Y_{\acute{e}t})$ and a closed pseudo-adic subspace Z of Y with inclusion $i: Z \to Y$, define $\mathbb{Z}_Z := i_* i^*(\mathbb{Z})$.

Definition 3.23. [11], Definition 6.7] Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$. Define $\mathbb{Z}_I \in Sh(Y_{\acute{e}t})$ as the subsheaf of

locally constant sections of $\prod_{g \in \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_I(K)} \mathbb{Z}_{qY_I^{\mathrm{ad}}}$, i.e.

$$\mathbb{Z}_I = \lim_{c \in \mathscr{C}_I} \mathbb{Z}_c$$

the limit being taken over the (pseudo-filtered) category \mathscr{C}_I of compact open disjoint coverings of $\mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_{I}(K)$ ordered by refinement where \mathbb{Z}_{c} denotes the image of the natural embedding $\bigoplus_{j \in A} \mathbb{Z}_{Z_I^{T_j}} \hookrightarrow \prod_{g \in \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_I(K)} \mathbb{Z}_{gY_I^{\mathrm{ad}}}$ for $c = \{T_j\}_{j \in A} \in \mathscr{C}_I$.

Let $I \subset I' \subsetneq \Delta$ and $\pi_{I,I'} : \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_I(K) \to \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_{I'}(K)$ be the natural surjection. Then, for all $g \in \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_{I}(K)$ and $h \in \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}_{I'}(K)$, we have a natural morphism $\mathbb{Z}_{gY_{I}^{\mathrm{ad}}} \to \mathbb{Z}_{hY_{I'}^{\mathrm{ad}}}$ which is trivial if $\pi_{I,I'}(g) \neq h$ and otherwise, it coincides with the map induced by the closed embedding $gY_I \hookrightarrow hY_{I'}$. Then, by definition, we get a natural morphism

$$p_{I,I'}:\mathbb{Z}_{I'}\to\mathbb{Z}_I.$$

Fix, an ordering on Δ . Assuming that |I'| - |I| = 1 and $I' = \{\alpha_1 < \ldots < \alpha_r\}$ we set

$$d_{I,I'} := \begin{cases} (-1)^i p_{I,I'} & \text{if} \quad I' = I \cup \{\alpha_i\}, \\ 0 & \text{else.} \end{cases}$$

This defines by standard procedure the following complex

$$0 \longrightarrow \mathbb{Z} \longrightarrow \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = 1}} \mathbb{Z}_I \longrightarrow \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = 2}} \mathbb{Z}_I \longrightarrow \dots \longrightarrow \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = |\Delta| - 1}} \mathbb{Z}_I \longrightarrow \mathbb{Z}_{\emptyset} \longrightarrow 0 \quad (3.22)$$

on $Y_{\acute{e}t}$ which is acyclic by [11], Theorem 6.9]. It is referred to as the fundamental complex.

Denote by $\iota: Y \hookrightarrow \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}}$ the closed embedding. Then, by [17, Exp. I, Proposition [2.3], we have 1

$$\operatorname{Ext}^*(\iota_*(\mathbb{Z}_Y), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong H^*_Y(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{ad}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

By applying $\operatorname{Ext}^*(\iota_*(-), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ to the complex (3.22), we get the spectral sequence

$$\hat{E}_{1}^{-p,q} = \operatorname{Ext}^{q}(\bigoplus_{\substack{I \subseteq \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = p+1}} \iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{I}), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \Rightarrow \operatorname{Ext}^{-p+q}(\iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{Y}), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = H_{Y}^{-p+q}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$
(3.23)

For the \hat{E}_1 -terms, we have the following identification.

Proposition 3.24. For all $I \subsetneq \Delta$, there exists an isomorphism

$$\operatorname{Ext}^*(\iota_*(\mathbb{Z}_I), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \operatorname{Ind}_{P_I^m}^{G_0}(H^*_{Y_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})).$$

Proof. This is essentially the proof of [39], Proposition 2.2.1], where the Drinfeld case is treated. The family

$$\{gP_I^m \mid g \in G_0, \, m \in \mathbb{N}\}\$$

of compact open subsets in G_0/P_I yields

$$\mathbb{Z}_I = \varinjlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} \mathbb{Z}_{Z^{gP_I^m}}.$$

Then, by choosing an injective resolution \mathcal{I}^{\bullet} of \mathcal{E}_{λ} , we have

$$\operatorname{Ext}^{i}(\iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{I}), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = H^{i}(\operatorname{Hom}(\iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{I}), \mathcal{I}^{\bullet})) = H^{i}(\operatorname{Hom}(\iota_{*}(\underset{m \in \mathbb{N}}{\varinjlim} \bigoplus_{g \in G_{0}/P_{I}^{m}} \mathbb{Z}_{Z_{I}^{gP_{I}^{m}}}), \mathcal{I}^{\bullet}))$$
$$= H^{i}(\underset{m \in \mathbb{N}}{\varinjlim} \bigoplus_{g \in G_{0}/P_{I}^{m}} \operatorname{Hom}(\iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{Z_{I}^{gP_{I}^{m}}}), \mathcal{I}^{\bullet})))$$
$$= H^{i}(\underset{m \in \mathbb{N}}{\varinjlim} \bigoplus_{g \in G_{0}/P_{I}^{m}} H^{0}_{Z_{I}^{gP_{I}^{m}}}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}}, \mathcal{I}^{\bullet})).$$

We set $Z_{I,m} := P_I^m \cdot Y_I^{\text{rig}} \subset \mathscr{F}^{\text{rig}}$ for $m \in \mathbb{N}$. Then, we have chains of open admissible subsets

$$\ldots \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \backslash Z_{I,m} \subset \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \backslash Z_{I,m+1} \subset \ldots$$

and

$$\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus Y_I(\epsilon_m) \subset \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}} \setminus Y_I(\epsilon_{m+1}) \subset \dots$$

which each cover $\mathscr{F}^{\text{rig}} \setminus Y_I^{\text{rig}}$. Then, we know from the proof of [55, Section 2, Proposition 4] that

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} H^0_{Z_{I,m}}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^p) = H^0_{Y_I^{\mathrm{rig}}}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^p) = \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} H^0_{Y_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^p).$$

The same holds for translates of $Z_{I,m}$ and $Y_I(\epsilon_m)$. Hence, we get (cf. [42, p. 1415])

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gZ_{I,m}}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^p) \cong \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^p)$$

for all injective sheafs of the resolution \mathcal{I}^{\bullet} . Therefore, using that \mathscr{F}^{rig} and \mathscr{F}^{ad} have equivalent topoi (cf. [20], Proposition 2.1.4]), we get by functoriality an isomorphism of complexes

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{Z_I^{gP_I^m}}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}}, \mathcal{I}^{\bullet}) \cong \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^{\bullet}).$$

This implies

$$\operatorname{Ext}^{i}(\iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{I}),\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = H^{i}(\varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_{0}/P_{I}^{m}} H^{0}_{gY_{I}(\epsilon_{m})}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}},\mathcal{I}^{\bullet})).$$

Before we can continue, we need a technical lemma where $\varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}}^{(r)}$ denote the *r*-th right derived functor of $\varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}}$.

Lemma 3.25. Let \mathcal{I} be an injective sheaf on $\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{ad}}$. Then,

$$\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} {}^{(r)} \big(\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}) \big) = 0 \text{ for all } r \ge 1.$$

Proof. It is sufficient to reproduce the proof of [39, Lemma 2.2.2].

Then, with the two standard hypercohomology spectral sequences

$$E_1^{pq} = \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} {}^{(q)} \big(\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^p) \big) \Rightarrow \mathbf{H}^{p+q} \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \big(\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^\bullet) \big),$$

$$E_2^{pq} = \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}}^{(p)} H^q \big(\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^{\bullet}) \big) \Rightarrow \mathbf{H}^{p+q} \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \big(\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^0_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{I}^{\bullet}) \big),$$

and by knowing that $\lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} {}^{(p)} = 0$ for $p \ge 2$ (cf. [24]), we get the following short exact sequence (cf. [55], Section 2, Proof of Proposition 4])

$$0 \to \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} {}^{(1)} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^{i-1}_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to \mathrm{Ext}^i(i_*(\mathbb{Z}_I), \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$
$$\to \lim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^i_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to 0$$

for all $i \in \mathbb{N}$. Moreover, Assumption 3.19 and Corollary 3.20, respectively, imply that the projective system of K-Fréchet spaces $\left(\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}^i(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})\right)_{m \in \mathbb{N}}$ satisfies the topological Mittag-Leffler property for all $i \geq 0$ (cf. 39, p. 626]). Therefore, by 18, Remark 13.2.4], the $\varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}}^{(1)}$ -term vanishes, i.e.

$$\operatorname{Ext}^{i}(\iota_{*}(\mathbb{Z}_{I}),\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \cong \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_{0}/P_{I}^{m}} H^{i}_{gY_{I}(\epsilon_{m})}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

The statement of the proposition is then just rewriting the latter term.

Proposition 3.26. We have a spectral sequence

$$E_1^{-p,q} = \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = p}} \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \operatorname{Ind}_{P_I^m}^{G_0} (H^q_{Y_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})) \Rightarrow H^{-p+q}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

where we use the abbreviation Y_{Δ} for \mathscr{F} .

Proof. We follow the arguments used in the proof of [40, Proposition 4.2]. First, we consider the second quadrant double complex $(\tilde{E}_1^{\bullet,\bullet}, d^{\bullet,\bullet}, d'^{\bullet,\bullet})$ defined by

$$\tilde{E}_1^{p,q} = \begin{cases} H^q(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_\lambda) & \text{if } p = 0\\ 0 & \text{else,} \end{cases}$$

with all differentials being trivial. Hence, it defines a spectral sequence converging to $H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$. Further, let $I \subset \Delta$ such that $|\Delta \setminus I| = 1$ and $m \in \mathbb{N}$. The inclusion $gY_I(\epsilon_m) \subset \mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}$ induces a morphism (cf. [47], Lemma 1.3])

$$H^*_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

for $g \in G/P_I^m$. Then, by the universal property of the direct sum we get a morphism

$$\bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^*_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)^{\operatorname{rig}}}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

Thus, the functoriality of $\varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}}$ yields

$$D_I^*: \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} \bigoplus_{g \in G_0/P_I^m} H^*_{gY_I(\epsilon_m)^{\mathrm{rig}}}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to \varprojlim_{m \in \mathbb{N}} H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}).$$

41

Then, we consider the morphism of double complexes (cf. (3.23))

$$f_1^{\bullet,\bullet}: \hat{E}_1^{\bullet,\bullet} \to \tilde{E}_1^{\bullet,\bullet}$$

given by

$$f_1^{p,q} = \begin{cases} \oplus_I D_I^q & \text{if } p = 0\\ 0 & \text{else.} \end{cases}$$

It induces the morphism of total complexes

$$\operatorname{Tot}(f_1^{\bullet,\bullet}): \operatorname{Tot}(E_1^{\bullet,\bullet}) \to \operatorname{Tot}(\tilde{E}_1^{\bullet,\bullet})$$

where we denote the mapping cone of $\text{Tot}(f_1^{\bullet,\bullet})$ by $\text{Cone}(\text{Tot}(f_1^{\bullet,\bullet}))^{\bullet}$. By the definitions, the triangle for this mapping cone induces a long exact sequence which identifies with

$$\dots \to H^q_Y(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_\lambda) \to H^q(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{rig}}, \mathcal{E}_\lambda) \to H^q(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_\lambda) \to \dots$$

Hence, the cohomology of $\operatorname{Cone}(\operatorname{Tot}(f_1^{\bullet,\bullet}))^{\bullet}$ coincides with $H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$. Furthermore, the total complex of the double complex $E_1^{\bullet,\bullet}$ in the statement is exactly $\operatorname{Cone}(\operatorname{Tot}(f_1^{\bullet,\bullet}))^{\bullet}$ which finishes the proof.

Before stating and proving the main theorem we need the following lemma.

Lemma 3.27. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$ and $w \in W^I \cap \Omega_I$. Then, $w \in \Omega_{\emptyset}$.

Proof. By Lemma 3.1, we know that

$$\mu = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} n_{\alpha} \alpha^{\vee}$$

for $n_{\alpha} \in \mathbb{Q}_{>0}$. As W acts by permutation on Φ , we have that

$$w\mu = \sum_{\alpha \in \Delta} m_{\alpha} \alpha^{\vee}$$

with $m_{\alpha} \in \mathbb{Q}$ for $w \in W^{I} \cap \Omega_{I}$. Then, by Lemma 3.4 it is enough to show that $\langle \check{\alpha}_{\alpha}, w \mu \rangle_{\text{der}} = m_{\alpha} > 0$ for all $\alpha \in I$. By (2.12), we have

$$\alpha = \sum_{\beta \in \Delta} \langle \alpha, \beta^{\vee} \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} \check{\varpi}_{\beta}$$

for $\alpha \in \Delta$. Moreover, from Lemma 2.3 we know that $w^{-1}\alpha \Phi^+$ for all $\alpha \in I$. Since we assumed μ to lie in the positive Weyl chamber (cf. (3.1)), we have

$$\langle \alpha, w\mu \rangle = \langle w^{-1}\alpha, \mu \rangle > 0$$

for $\alpha \in I$. By the very definition of \langle , \rangle_{der} it follows that

$$\langle \alpha, w\mu \rangle_{\rm der} > 0$$

for all $\alpha \in I$. Furthermore, for $\alpha, \beta \in \Delta$ and $\alpha \neq \beta$, we know by Lemma 2.2 that $\langle \alpha, \beta^{\vee} \rangle_{\text{der}} \leq 0$. Recall that $w \in W^{I} \cap \Omega_{I}$ implies that $\langle \check{\alpha}_{\beta}, w \mu \rangle_{\text{der}} > 0$ for $\beta \in \Delta \backslash I$ by

Lemma 3.4. Thus, for $\alpha \in I$ and $w \in W^I \cap \Omega_I$, we have that

$$b_{\alpha} := \sum_{\beta \in I} \langle \alpha, \beta^{\vee} \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} \langle \check{\varpi}_{\beta}, w\mu \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} = \langle \alpha, w\mu \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} - \sum_{\beta \in \Delta \setminus I} \langle \alpha, \beta^{\vee} \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} \langle \check{\varpi}_{\beta}, w\mu \rangle_{\operatorname{der}} > 0. \quad (3.24)$$

We fix an ordering on $I = \{\alpha_1 > \alpha_2 > \ldots > \alpha_r\}$ and define

$$C \in \mathbb{Q}^{|I| \times |I|} \text{ with } C_{ij} := \langle \alpha_i, \alpha_j^{\vee} \rangle_{\text{der}},$$
$$x := (m_{\alpha_i})_{i \in \{1, \dots, r\}} \in \mathbb{Q}^{|I|},$$
$$b := (b_{\alpha_i})_{i \in \{1, \dots, r\}} \in \mathbb{Q}^{|I|}.$$

Then,

$$Cx = b. (3.25)$$

After reordering the simple roots, if necessary, we can assume that C has blocks C_1, \ldots, C_t on the main diagonal and has zeroes everywhere else. Then, the C_i 's are the (transposed) Cartan matrices (cf. (2.13)) of the irreducible components of the Dynkin diagram of Φ_I . Thus, C^{-1} has blocks C_i^{-1} on the main diagonal and has zeroes everywhere else. The entries of the C_i^{-1} are, by Lemma 2.8, known to be positive rational. Then, (3.24) and (3.25) imply immediately that $m_{\alpha} > 0$ for all $\alpha \in I$.

Theorem 3.28. Let $i_0 := \dim \mathscr{F} - |\Delta|$. The homology of the (chain) complex

$$C_{\bullet}: \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w) = \dim Y_{\emptyset}}} V_B^G(w) \leftarrow \ldots \leftarrow \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w) = 1}} V_B^G(w) \leftarrow V_B^G(\lambda)$$

starting in degree i_0 coincides with $H^*(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$, i.e. $H_i(C_{\bullet}) = H^i(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$.

Proof. We consider the double complex $D_{\bullet,\bullet}$, similar to the one from [43, p. 662], defined as a second quadrant double chain complex, given by

$$D_{p,q} = \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = -p}} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W^I \cap \Omega_I \\ l(w) = n-q}} I_{P_I}^G(w) \left(= \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset \Delta \\ |\Delta \setminus I| = -p}} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W^I \cap \Omega_I \\ l(w) = n-q}} \mathcal{F}_{P_I}^G(H^q_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})) \right)$$

(cf. (2.22) for the objects). The vertical differentials are the ones coming from Lemma 3.14. The horizontal ones come from the transition maps

$$H^q_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to H^q_{C_{I'}(w)}(\mathscr{F},\mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$$

for $I \subset I'$ and $w \in W^{I'}$ induced by the fact that $C_I(w) \subset C_{I'}(w)$ is a closed subset. They are the same as in Example 2.20. The commutativity is shown as in the proof of [43, Theorem 4.2].

We are especially interested in the two spectral sequences converging towards the homology of the total complex $Tot(D_{\bullet,\bullet})$ associated to $D_{\bullet,\bullet}$. Namely,

$${}^{I}E^{0}_{p,q} = D_{p,q} \Rightarrow H_{p+q}(\operatorname{Tot}(D_{\bullet,\bullet})),$$

$${}^{II}E^{0}_{p,q} = D_{q,p} \Rightarrow H_{p+q}(\operatorname{Tot}(D_{\bullet,\bullet})).$$

Then, by Lemma 3.14 and Lemma 3.22 in combination with the functoriality and the exactness of the functor \mathcal{F}_P^G (cf. Proposition 2.33 and 2.34), we see that ${}^I E^1_{\bullet,\bullet} = (E_1^{\bullet,\bullet})'$ (cf. Proposition 3.26). We know from Proposition 3.24 that the entrys of $E_1^{\bullet,\bullet}$ are K-Fréchet spaces. Furthermore, the duality functor is exact on the category of K-Fréchet spaces (cf. [2], Section I, Corollary 1.4]). Hence, $H_p(\operatorname{Tot}(D_{\bullet,\bullet})) \cong H^p(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$. Due to Lemma 3.27, we have

$${}^{II}E^0_{p,\bullet} = \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w) = n-p}} E^{0,w}_{p,\bullet}$$

with chain complexes

$$E_{p,\bullet}^{0,w}: I_{P_{I(w)}}^{G}(w) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset I(w) \\ |I(w) \setminus I|=1}} I_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) \to \dots \to \bigoplus_{\substack{I \subset I(w) \\ |I|=1}} I_{P_{I}}^{G}(w) \to I_{B}^{G}(w)$$
(3.26)

ending in degree $-|\Delta|$. From Corollary 2.39 we know that these complexes are exact except at the very right position where the cokernel is $V_B^G(w)$. Thus, we get

$${}^{II}E^{1}_{p,q} = \begin{cases} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w) = n-p}} V^{G}_{B}(w) & \text{if } q = -|\Delta|, \\ 0 & \text{else.} \end{cases}$$

Therefore, ${}^{II}E^2 = {}^{II}E^{\infty}$ and we are done.

Corollary 3.29. Let $i_0 := \dim \mathscr{F} - |\Delta|$. Then, $H^{i_0}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \neq 0$.

Proof. We know from [43, Corollary 4.3] that

$$v_B^G(\lambda) = \operatorname{Ker}\left(V_B^G(\lambda) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w)\right).$$

But then it follows from the previous theorem that

$$v_B^G(\lambda) = \operatorname{Ker}\left(V_B^G(\lambda) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in W \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w)\right) \subset \operatorname{Ker}\left(V_B^G(\lambda) \to \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w)\right) = H^{i_0}(\mathscr{F}^{\operatorname{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})'$$

Therefore, $H^{i_0}(\mathscr{F}^{\mathrm{wa}}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ cannot be trivial.

Lemma 3.30. Let $w, w' \in \Omega_{\emptyset}$ with $w' \leq w$ and l(w) = l(w') + 1. Then, the morphism

$$p_{w',w}: V_B^G(w') \to V_B^G(w)$$

appearing in the differentials of C_{\bullet} is surjective.

Proof. As seen in the proof of Theorem 3.28, the morphism $p_{w',w}: V_B^G(w') \to V_B^G(w)$ is induced by a morphism $\varphi: I_B^G(w') \to I_B^G(w)$. This one in turn comes from a non-trivial morphism

$$i_{w,w'}: M(w \cdot \lambda) = H^{n-l(w)}_{C(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) \to H^{n-l(w')}_{C(w')}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda}) = M(w' \cdot \lambda)$$

44

(cf. Remark 3.15). Thus, $i_{w,w'}$ is injective (cf. 8, p. 46]) and therefore $\varphi = \mathcal{F}_B^G(i_{w,w'})$ is surjective (cf. Proposition 2.34). Then, we have the following commutative diagram

$$I_B^G(w') \xrightarrow{\mathcal{F}_B^G(i_{w,w'})} I_B^G(w)$$
$$\downarrow \pi \qquad \qquad \qquad \downarrow \pi$$
$$V_B^G(w') \xrightarrow{p_{w',w}} V_B^G(w)$$

where π denote the natural projection onto the quotient. Since all morphism except $p_{w',w}$ in the commutative diagram are surjective, it follows that $p_{w',w}$ is also surjective.

In the following examples, we will compute the composition factors of the homology groups of the complex C_{\bullet} of Theorem 3.28 for $\mathbf{G} = \mathrm{SL}_4$ and some $\mu \in X_*(\mathbf{T})$. The strategy is first to compute all composition factors with multiplicities of the objects in C_{\bullet} with the help of Theorem 2.40. This is done with a small program in SAGE (cf. Appendix A.1). Then, we can deduce the composition factors of the homology groups by knowing by the previous lemma that the morphism $p_{w',w}: V_B^G(w') \to V_B^G(w)$ in the complex C_{\bullet} is surjective for $w', w \in W$ with $w' \leq w$ and how composition factors behave under short exact sequences.

Definition 3.31. Let D be a composition factor of $V_B^G(\lambda)$ and $n_w := [V_B^G(w) : D]$ the multiplicity of D in $V_B^G(w)$ for $w \in W$. Then, we define the distribution type of D in the complex C_{\bullet} by

$$(n_e, \{n_w\}_{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset}, l(w)=1}, \dots, \{n_w\}_{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset}, l(w)=\dim Y_{\emptyset}}) \in \mathbb{N}_0^{|\Omega_{\emptyset}|}.$$

Remark 3.32. The distribution type depends on an ordering on Ω_{\emptyset} . We will implicitely give such an ordering in each example and hope that causes no confusion with the notation.

Example 3.33. Let $\mathbf{G} = \mathrm{SL}_4$, $\Delta = \{\alpha_1, \alpha_2, \alpha_3\}$, $S = \{s_1, s_2, s_3\} \subset W$ with s_i corresponding to α_i , and s_1 commutes with s_3 . We set $\mathbf{P}_i = \mathbf{P}_{\{\alpha_i\}}$ and $\mathbf{P}_{i,j} = \mathbf{P}_{\{\alpha_i,\alpha_j\}}$. Furthermore let $\mu = (x_1, x_2, x_3, x_4) \in X_*(\mathbf{T}) \cong \mathbb{Z}^4$ with $x_1 > x_2 > x_3 > x_4$ (cf. Example 2.10).

a) $\mu = (x_1, x_2, x_3, x_4)$ with $\sum x_i = 0$ and $x_3 > 0$. Then

$$\Omega_{\emptyset} = \{e, s_1, s_2, s_1 s_2, s_2 s_1, s_1 s_2 s_1\}$$

and

$$C_{\bullet}: V_B^G(\lambda) \xrightarrow{f} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w) \xrightarrow{g} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=2}} V_B^G(w) \xrightarrow{h} V_B^G(s_1 s_2 s_1).$$

The appearing distribution types of C_{\bullet} (cf. Appendix A.2) are

$$\begin{array}{l} (\{2\},\{2,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\}), \ (\{2\},\{1,2\},\{1,1\},\{1\}), \\ (\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\}), \ (\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\}), \\ (\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0,1\},\{0\}), \ (\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\}), \\ (\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\}), \ (\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\}). \end{array}$$

As an example for the computations, we consider the distribution type

 $(\{2\},\{2,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$

and denote a corresponding factor by D. Then,

$$[\operatorname{Ker}(f):D] \le [\operatorname{Ker}(V_B^G(\lambda) \to V_B^G(s_1)):D] = 0.$$

This implies that [Im(f): D] = 2. Moreover, [Im(h): D] = 1 since

$$V_B^G(s_1s_2) \to V_B^G(s_1s_2s_1)$$

is surjective. Thus, [Ker(h):D] = 1. As the composition

$$\bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w) \xrightarrow{g} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=2}} V_B^G(w) \xrightarrow{\pi_1} V_B^G(s_1 s_2)$$

is surjective, we have the chain of inequalities

$$1 \le [\operatorname{Im}(g) : D] \le [\operatorname{Ker}(h) : D] = 1.$$

Therefore, [Im(g): D] = 1 and [Ker(g): D] = 2. Finally, we see that

$$[H_i(C_\bullet):D] = 0$$

for all *i*. The same arguments applied to all distribution types show that $H_i(C_{\bullet}) = 0$ for $i \neq \dim(\mathscr{F}) - |\Delta| = 3$ and that $H_3(C_{\bullet}) = \operatorname{Ker}(f)$ has composition factors precisely

each with multiplicity one.

b) $\mu = (x_1, x_2, x_3, x_4)$ with $\sum x_i = 0$ and $x_3 = 0$. Then,

$$\Omega_{\emptyset} = \{e, s_1, s_2, s_2 s_1\}$$

and

$$C_{\bullet}: V_B^G(\lambda) \xrightarrow{f} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w) \xrightarrow{g} V_B^G(s_2s_1).$$

The appearing distribution types in C_{\bullet} (cf. Appendix A.2) are

$$\begin{array}{l} (\{2\},\{2,1\},\{1\}), \ (\{2\},\{1,2\},\{1\}), \\ (\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\}), \ (\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\}), \\ (\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\}), \ (\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\}), \\ (\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0\}). \end{array}$$

With the same arguments as above, we get that $H_i(C_{\bullet}) = 0$ for $i \neq 2, 3$. Furthermore, $H_3(C_{\bullet})$ has composition factors precisely

each with multiplicity one. Moreover, $H_2(C_{\bullet})$ has composition factors precisely

$$\begin{aligned} &\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{1}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), v_{B}^{P_{2,3}} \Big), \mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3} \cdot \lambda), v_{B}^{P_{2,3}} \Big), \\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{2}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{3}s_{1}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), v_{B}^{P_{2}} \Big), \mathcal{F}_{P_{2}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), v_{B}^{P_{2}} \Big), \\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), 1 \Big), \mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{1,3}} \Big), \\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), 1 \Big), \mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2} \cdot \lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{1,3}} \Big), \end{aligned}$$

each with multiplicity one as well.

c)
$$\mu = (x_1, x_2, x_3, x_4)$$
 with $\sum x_i = 0, x_2 > 0, x_3 < 0, x_1 + x_4 > 0, x_2 + x_3 < 0$. Then,
 $\Omega_{\emptyset} = \{e, s_1, s_2, s_3, s_1 s_3, s_2 s_3\}$

and

$$C_{\bullet}: V_B^G(\lambda) \xrightarrow{f} \bigoplus_{\substack{w \in \Omega_{\emptyset} \\ l(w)=1}} V_B^G(w) \xrightarrow{g} V_B^G(s_1s_3) \oplus V_B^G(s_2s_3)$$

The appearing distribution types in C_{\bullet} (cf. Appendix A.2) are

$$\begin{array}{l} (\{2\},\{2,1,2\},\{2,1\}), \ (\{2\},\{1,2,1\},\{1,1\}), \ (\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\}), \\ (\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\}), \ (\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\}), \ (\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,1\}), \\ (\{1\},\{1,1,0\},\{0,0\}), \ (\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,0\}), \ (\{1\},\{1,0,0\},\{0,0\}), \\ (\{1\},\{0,1,0\},\{0,0\}), \ (\{1\},\{0,0,1\},\{0,0\}), \ (\{1\},\{0,0,0\},\{0,0\}). \end{array}$$

First, we notice that g is surjective since $V_B^G(s_1)$ and $V_B^G(s_2)$ map onto a single but distinct direct summand. Then, we can apply the same arguments as before. We compute that $H_i(C_{\bullet}) = 0$ for $i \neq 2, 3$. Furthermore, $H_3(C_{\bullet}) = v_B^G(\lambda)$. Moreover, $H_2(C_{\bullet})$ has composition factors precisely

$$\begin{split} &\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{2,3}}\Big),\,\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{1,3}}\Big),\\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{2}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{1,2}}\Big),\,\mathcal{F}_{P_{3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{3}}\Big),\\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{1,2}}\Big),\,\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),v_{P_{2}}^{P_{1,2}}\Big),\\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{2}}\Big),\,\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}\cdot\lambda),1\Big),\\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}\cdot\lambda),v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,3}}\Big),\,\mathcal{F}_{P_{2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),1\Big),\\ &\mathcal{F}_{P_{2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),v_{B}^{P_{2}}\Big),\,\mathcal{F}_{P_{1}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda),1\Big), \end{split}$$

47

each with multiplicity one.

3.6 Outlook to the parabolic case

Last but not least, we would like to illustrate why the arguments of the last section are not so easily transferable to the case where $\{\mu\}$ is arbitrary. Even if we make the Assumption 3.19 adjusted to this case.

One crucial point in the previous computations is Lemma 3.13, namely, the fact that $H^*_{C_I(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ has only non-trivial cohomology in degree n - l(w). This made it possible to compute $H^*_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ with a suitable chain complex (cf. Lemma 3.14). We will see in this section that in the general parabolic case, the local cohomology groups with support in a generalized Schubert cell with coefficients in a line bundle \mathcal{E}_{λ} , analogous to the Borel case, do not have this vanishing property. For this, we first define generalized Schubert cells for the general situation and show a result similar to Proposition 3.7

Therefore, we consider a local Shtuka-datum ($\mathbf{G}, \{\mu\}, [1]$) with arbitrary $\{\mu\}$; \mathbf{G} is still assumed to be split. As before, we fix an IIP on \mathbf{G} and choose a split maximal torus \mathbf{T} of \mathbf{G} of rank d such that $\mu \in X_*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}$. Let (\mathbf{T}, \mathbf{B}) be a Borel pair of rank d which gives rise to a set of simple roots (cf. section [2.1])

$$\Delta := \{\alpha_1, \ldots, \alpha_d\} \subset X^*(\mathbf{T})_{\mathbb{Q}}.$$

Again, we can assume that μ lies in the positive Weyl chamber with respect to **B**, so $\mathbf{P} := \mathbf{P}(\mu) \supset \mathbf{B}$, i.e. it is a standard parabolic subgroup with respect to **B**. Let $\mathscr{F} := \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}$ which is defined over K. Further, we let W_{μ} be the stabilizer of μ under the action of W. Then, it can be easily shown that $W_{\mu} = W_{J_{\mu}}$ for

$$J_{\mu} := \{ \alpha \in \Delta \mid \langle \alpha, \mu \rangle = 0 \} \subset \Delta$$

(cf. [21], Section 10.3, Lemma B and Proof]). We denote by $J_{\mu}W$ the left Kostant representatives, i.e. the set of minimal length left coset representatives in $W/W_{J_{\mu}}$. Then, adjusted to this case, we let

$$\Omega_I := \{ w \in {}^{J_\mu}W \mid (w\mu, \varpi_\alpha) > 0 \text{ for all } \alpha \notin I \}$$
(3.27)

for $I \subsetneq \Delta$ (cf. [41], p. 530]). Again, we have the following useful lemma induced by Lemma 2.7.

Lemma 3.34. Let $I \subsetneq \Delta$. Then, $w \in \Omega_I$ if and only if $\langle \check{\varpi}_{\alpha}, w \mu \rangle_{der} > 0$ for all $\alpha \notin I$.

The definition of $Y_I \subset \mathscr{F}$ is still the same (cf. (3.4)) and furthermore, similar to the Borel case, Y_I is also a union of Schubert cells in \mathscr{F} .

Proposition 3.35. [41], Proposition 4.1] For $I \subsetneq \Delta$, we obtain

$$Y_I = \bigcup_{w \in \Omega_I} \mathbf{B} w \mathbf{P} / \mathbf{P}.$$

For $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in W$, we have (cf. [45], Section 2.1])

$$\mathbf{P}_{I}w\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P} = igcup_{(v,u)\in W_{I} imes W_{J_{\mu}}} \mathbf{B}vwu\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P}$$

From [4] Proposition 2.7], we know that each double coset $W_I \setminus W/W_{J_{\mu}}$ contains a unique element of minimal length which can be found in $J_{\mu}W^I := J_{\mu}W \cap W^I$. That motivates the following definition.

Definition 3.36. Let $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in {}^{J_{\mu}}W^{I}$.

i) The generalized Schubert cell in \mathscr{F} associated to I and w is

$$C_I^{\mu}(w) := \mathbf{P}_I w \mathbf{P} / \mathbf{P}.$$

If $I = \emptyset$, we omit the subscript.

ii) For $J \subset \Delta$, let $S_J = \{s_\alpha \in S \mid \alpha \in J\}$ (cf. (2.4)). For $w \in W$ we define $H_w \subset \Delta$ to be the subset such that

$$S_{H_w} = S_I \cap w S_{J_u} w^{-1}$$

Then, we let ${}^{H_w}W_I$ be the set of left Kostant representatives of W_I/W_{H_w} .

Lemma 3.37. [4, Corollary 2.8] Let $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in J_{\mu}W^{I}$. Then, $vw \in J_{\mu}W$ for $v \in W_{I}$ if and only if $v \in {}^{H_{w}}W_{I}$. Consequenty, every element of $W_{I}wW_{J_{\mu}}$ can be written uniquely as vwu, where $v \in {}^{H_{w}}W_{I}$, $u \in W_{J_{\mu}}$, and l(vwu) = l(v) + l(w) + l(u).

Lemma 3.38. Let $I \subset \Delta$ and $w \in {}^{J_{\mu}}W^{I}$. Then,

$$C_I^{\mu}(w) = \bigsqcup_{v \in {}^{H_w}W_I} C^{\mu}(vw).$$

Proof. We have seen that

$$C_I^{\mu}(w) = \bigcup_{(v,u)\in W_I \times W_{J_{\mu}}} \mathbf{B}vwu\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P}.$$

Therefore, one inclusion is obvious. For the other inclusion, notice that $u \in W_{J_{\mu}}$ implies $u\mathbf{P} = \mathbf{P}$. Furthermore, if $v' \in W_I$, there exist unique $v \in {}^{H_w}W_I$ and $v'' \in W_{H_w}$ such that v' = vv'' and l(v') = l(v) + l(v''). As $v'' \in W_{H_w}$, we can write $v'' = wu'w^{-1}$ with $u' \in W_{J_{\mu}}$. Thus,

$$\mathbf{B}v'w\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P} = \mathbf{B}vwu'w^{-1}w\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P} = \mathbf{B}vw\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P}$$

and

$$C_{I}^{\mu}(w) = \bigcup_{(v,u)\in W_{I}\times W_{J_{\mu}}} \mathbf{B}vwu\mathbf{P}/\mathbf{P} \subset \bigcup_{v\in H_{w}W_{I}} C^{\mu}(vw).$$

Then, the disjointness follows by 26, Proposition 6.2] as the $C^{\mu}(vw)$ are Schubert cells of \mathscr{F} .

Proposition 3.39. For $I \subsetneq \Delta$, we have

$$Y_I = \bigsqcup_{w \in {}^{J_\mu}W^I \cap \Omega_I} C_I^\mu(w)$$

Proof. We know from [12] Proposition 11.1.6] that $Y_I = \bigcup_{w \in \Omega_I} \mathbf{P}_I w \mathbf{P} / \mathbf{P}$. For $w' \in \Omega_I$ exist, by Lemma 3.37, unique $w \in J_{\mu} W^I$, $v \in {}^{H_w} W_I$, and $u \in W_{J_{\mu}}$ such that w' = vwu with l(w') = l(v) + l(w) + l(u), and $vw \in {}^{J_{\mu}}W$. Since $w' \in {}^{J_{\mu}}W$ (cf. (3.27)), we have that u = e. Then, we see that

$$\mathbf{P}_I w' \mathbf{P} / \mathbf{P} = \mathbf{P}_I v w \mathbf{P} / \mathbf{P} = \mathbf{P}_I w \mathbf{P} / \mathbf{P}.$$

Since Y_I is closed, we get

$$Y_I = \bigcup_{w \in {}^{J_\mu}W^I \cap \Omega_I} C_I^\mu(w).$$

The union is disjoint for the same reason as in the proof of Proposition 3.7.

Let $\lambda \in X^*(\mathbf{T})^+$ be a dominant weight and $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda} = \mathcal{L}_{\lambda} \otimes \omega_{\mathscr{F}}$, analogously defined to (3.3). Then, one could ask if we can compute $H^*_{Y_I}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ by a similar complex as in Lemma 3.14. The following example at least gives the answer that these cohomology groups are not so easy to deduce as in the Borel case.

Example 3.40. We are in the situation of Example 2.10 for n = 3. Further, we let $\mu = (2, -1, -1) \in X_*(\mathbf{T})$. Then, $\mathscr{F} = \mathbf{G}/\mathbf{P}(\mu) \cong \mathbb{P}^2_K$ and $J_{\mu} = \{\alpha_2\}$. Let $I = \{\alpha_1\}$. Hence, $W^I = \{e, s_2, s_2s_1\}$, $J_{\mu}W = \{e, s_1, s_2s_1\}$, and thus $J_{\mu}W^I = \{e, s_2s_1\}$. We choose $w = e \in J_{\mu}W^I$. This implies $S_I \cap wS_Jw^{-1} = \{e\}$ and therefore $H_w = \emptyset$. From that, it follows that

$$C_I^{\mu}(e) = C^{\mu}(e) \sqcup C^{\mu}(s_1).$$

Let $\lambda = (0, \ldots, 0) \in X^*(\mathbf{T})$. Then, $\mathcal{E}_{\lambda} = \omega_{\mathscr{F}}$ and $H^*_{C^{\mu}_{I}(e)}(\mathscr{F}, \omega_{\mathscr{F}})$ is the cohomology of the cochain complex

$$H^1_{C^\mu(s_1)}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}}) \to H^2_{C^\mu(e)}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}})$$

by Lemma 3.11. Here we used that the Schubert cell $C^{\mu}(w)$ is affine for $w \in {}^{J_{\mu}}W$. Hence, $H^*_{C^{\mu}(w)}(\mathscr{F}, \omega_{\mathscr{F}})$ is only non-trivial in degree n - l(w). As

$$\mathscr{F} = C^{\mu}(e) \sqcup C^{\mu}(s_1) \sqcup C^{\mu}(s_2s_1),$$

we see, by the same arguments as before, that the cochain complex

$$H^{0}_{C^{\mu}(s_{2}s_{1})}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}}) \to H^{1}_{C^{\mu}(s_{1})}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}}) \to H^{2}_{C^{\mu}(e)}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}})$$

computes $H^*(\mathscr{F}, \omega_{\mathscr{F}})$ and the morphism are the same as for $H^*_{C^{\mu}_I(e)}(\mathscr{F}, \omega_{\mathscr{F}})$. Hence, we have

$$H^{2}_{C^{\mu}_{I}(e)}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}}) = H^{2}(\mathscr{F},\omega_{\mathscr{F}}) \neq 0.$$

Moreover, as shown in [39, Proposition 3.2.1], $H^1_{C^{\mu}_{I}(e)}(\mathscr{F}, \omega_{\mathscr{F}}) \neq 0.$

By the previous example, we see that in contrast to the Borel case, the cohomology groups $H^*_{C_I^{\mu}(w),}(\mathscr{F}, \mathcal{E}_{\lambda})$ can be non-trivial in more than one degree. As in the proof of Lemma 3.14] the covering of Y_I from Lemma 3.39 induces a filtration on Y_I by closed subspaces with disjoint union of generalized Schubert cells as differences. Therefore, the associated E_1 -page of the spectral sequence of Lemma 3.11 can have more than one non-trivial line. Hence, the proof of Lemma 3.14 breaks down at this point.

A Appendix

A.1 Code for composition factors

Here, we present the code used for the computation of the Jordan-Hölder factors of $V_B^G(w)$ with multiplicities from Example 3.33. The chosen language is SAGE:

```
compositionfactors.sage:
```

```
R. < q > = LaurentPolynomialRing(QQ)
  1
    KL=KazhdanLusztigPolynomial(W,q)
 2
 3
    def supp(W,w):
 4
         supp=set([])
 \mathbf{5}
         ref=W.bruhat_interval(1,w)
 6
         for v in ref:
 7
              if v.length()==1:
  8
                 supp.add(v)
 9
 10
              return Set(supp)
 11
    def I(W,w):
 12
         I = set({})
 13
         for s in W.simple_reflections():
 14
              if (s*w).length()>w.length():
 15
 16
                 I.add(s)
 17
         return Set(I)
 18
    def multiplicity(W,w,v,J):
 19
         x=W.long_element()
 20
         H=I(W,w)
 ^{21}
         M=H.intersection(J)
 22
         c=M.cardinality()
 23
         mult=0
 24
         ref=W.bruhat_interval(W.one(),v)
 25
         ref1=[]
 26
 27
         for t in ref:
              ref1.append(t*w.inverse())
 28
         for t in ref1:
 29
 30
              if supp(W,t)==M:
                 mult=mult+pow(-1,t.length()+c)*KL.P(x*t*w*x,x*v*x)(1)
 31
         return mult
 32
 33
    def multiplicitytot(W,w):
 34
         res=[]
 35
         c=0
 36
         L=W.bruhat_interval(W.one(),W.long_element())
 37
 38
         for v in L:
             H = I(W, v)
 39
              S=Subsets(H)
 40
 ^{41}
              for J in S:
                  m=multiplicity(W,w,v,J)
 42
                  if m != 0:
 43
                      c = c + 1
 44
                      h=[]
 45
                      h.append(v)
 46
                      h.append(H)
 47
                      h.append(J)
 48
                      h.append(m)
 49
 50
                      res.append(h)
         return res, c
 51
Then, we applied this part to the relevant Weyl group elements.
```

1 sage: W = WeylGroup("A3", prefix="s")
2 sage: [s1,s2,s3]=W.simple_reflections()

```
sage: load("compositionfactors.sage")
 3
      sage: multiplicitytot(W,W.one())
 4
          ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
 5
 6
                                                                            1],
 7
               [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 2],
[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
 8
 9
10
11
               [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {},
                                                                 1],
12
               [s3*s1*s2*s1, \{s2\}, \{s2\}, 1]
13
              [s3*s1*s2*s1, ts2;, ts2;, ts2;, t],
[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 2],
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
               [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {s3},
                                                                     1]
21
               [s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
22
23
               [s1*s2*s1, \{s3\}, \{\}, 1],
24
               [s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {}]
25
                                                                   1],
               [s3*s2*s1, \{s1, s2\}, \{s1\}, 1],
26
               [s3*s2*s1, \{s1, s2\}, \{s2\}, 1],
27
               [s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s1, s2},
[s3*s1*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
                                                                               1],
28
29
               [s3*s1*s2, \{s2\}, \{s2\},
                                                               1]
30
               [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
31
               [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
32
33
               [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2, {s1}, {}, 1],
34
35
               [s1*s2*s3, \{s3, s2\}, \{\}, 1],
36
               [s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {s3}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {s2}, 1],
37
38
               [s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {s3, s2},
[s2*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
                                                                               1],
39
40
               [s2*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
[s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {s2}, 1],
41
42
43
               [s3*s1, \{s2\}, \{\}, 1],
44
               [s3*s2, {s1, s2}, {}, 1],
[s3*s2, {s1, s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s2*s3, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
45
46
47
               [s2*s3, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
48
               [s1, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
[s3, {s1, s2}, {}, 1],
[1, {s1, s3, s2}, {}, 1],
49
50
51
52
              48)
53
      sage: multiplicitytot(W,s1)
54
           ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
55
56
               [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
57
               [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 2],
[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
58
59
60
61
              [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {s3, 1],
[s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s2}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1]
62
63
64
65
66
               [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
67
```

```
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
 68
             [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3},
                                                                         1],
 69
             [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
 70
             [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {s3}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
 71
 72
             [s1*s2*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
 73
             [s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {}, 1],
[s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s1}, 1],
[s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s1}, 1],
[s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s1, s2}, 1],
 74
 75
 76
 77
             [s3*s1*s2, \{s2\}, \{\}, 1],
 78
             [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
 79
 80
 81
                    [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3}, 1],
 82
             [s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {s3}, 1],
 83
 84
             [s2*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
 85
             [s2*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
 86
             [s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s3*s1, {s2}, {}, 1],
 87
 88
             [s1, {s3, s2}, {}, 1]]
 89
             35)
 90
      sage: multiplicitytot(W,s2)
91
          ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {},
                                                        {}, 1],
[}, 1],
 92
             [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
93
 94
95
             [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
 96
             [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {s3}, 1],
97
98
             [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1],
99
             [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2},
                                                            1],
100
             [s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
101
             [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {},
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1
                                                               2],
102
                                                        {s1}, 1],
103
             [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
104
             [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3},
                                                                          1].
105
             [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
106
107
108
             [s1*s2*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
109
             [s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {}, 1]
110
             [s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s3*s1*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
111
112
             [s3*s1*s2, \{s2\}, \{s2\}, 1]
113
             [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2, {s1}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
114
115
116
117
             [s2*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {}, 1],
[s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s3*s2, {s1, s2}, {}, 1],
118
119
120
                                                        1],
121
             [s3*s2, {s1, s2}, {s2}, 1],
[s2*s3, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
122
123
             [s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1]],
124
             33)
125
      sage: multiplicitytot(W,s1*s2)
126
          ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s1}, 1],
127
128
129
130
             [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, \{s2\}, \{s2\}, 1],
131
             [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
132
```

[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {s3}, 1], [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {b}, 1], [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {s1, s3}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s1, {s3}, {}, 1], [s3*s1*s2, {s2}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3, {s3, s2}, {}, 1]. [s1*s2, {s3, s2}, {}, 1]] 19) sage: multiplicitytot(W,s2*s1) ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, [s3, [f, 1], [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1], [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1], [s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s1, {s3}, {}, 1], $[s3*s2*s1, \{s1, s2\}, \{\}, 1],$ [s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s2}, 1], [s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1], [s2*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1]] 17) sage: multiplicitytot(W,s1*s2*s1) ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1], [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1] [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {s1}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s1, {s3}, {}, 1]], 12)sage: multiplicitytot(W,s3) ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 2], [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {s3}, 1], [s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1], [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1], [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {s3}, 1] [s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {s3}, 1] [s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],

198	[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
199	$[s3*s2*s1, \{s1, s2\}, \{\}, 1],$
200	[s3*s2*s1, {s1, s2}, {s1}, 1],
201	[s3*s1*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
202	[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
203	[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1}, 1],
204	[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
205	[s2*s3*s1, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3}, 1],
206	[s2*s3*s2, {s1}, {}, 1],
207	$[s1*s2*s3, \{s3, s2\}, \{\}, 1],$
208	$[s1*s2*s3, \{s3, s2\}, \{s3\}, 1],$
209	$[S1*S2*S3, \{S3, S2\}, \{S2\}, 1],$
210	[SI*S2*S3, [S3, S2], [S3, S2], I],
211	$\begin{bmatrix} S 3 * S I, \{ S Z \}, \{ \}, \{ \}, I \end{bmatrix},$
212	$\begin{bmatrix} 50 + 52 \\ -51 \\ -51 \\ -52 \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} 52 \\ -52 \\ $
213	[82*83, 181, 835, 15, 1], [a9*a2 fa1 a21 fa21 1]
214	$\begin{bmatrix} 52 & 50 \\ c^3 & c^1 & c^2 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 50 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 51 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 51 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 50 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 51 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 51 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 50 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 51 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 50 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 51 \\ c^3 \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} 50 \\ c^3 $
215	35)
210	sage: multiplicitytot(W s1*s3)
217	$\left(\left[s_{1} + s_{2} + s_{3} + s_{1} + s_{2} + s_{1} + s_{1} + s_{2} + s_{1} + s_{1} + s_{2} + s_{2} + s_{1} + s_{1} + s_{2} + s_{1} + s_{1} + s_{2} + s_{1} $
219	$[s_2*s_3*s_1*s_2*s_1, \{s_1\}, \{\}, 1],$
220	$[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1].$
221	$[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, \{s2\}, \{\}, 2],$
222	$[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, \{s2\}, \{s2\}, 1],$
223	[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
224	[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {s3}, 1],
225	[s3*s1*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1],
226	[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
227	[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {s1}, 1],
228	[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
229	$[s2*s3*s1*s2, \{s1, s3\}, \{s1\}, 1],$
230	[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s3}, 1],
231	[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s1, s3}, 1],
232	[s1*s2*s3*s1, {s3}, {}, 1],
233	$[s1*s2*s3*s1, \{s3\}, \{s3\}, 1],$
234	$[S1*S2*S3*S2, \{S2\}, \{\}, 1],$
235	$[S3*S2*S1, \{S1, S2\}, \{\}, 1],$
236	[53 + 52 + 51, [51, 52], [51], 1],
237	$\begin{bmatrix} 50^{+}51^{+}52, & [52], & [], & 1 \end{bmatrix}$
200 220	[22*30*31, [31, 30], [], 1], [22*33*31, [31, 30], [], 1],
239	$[s_2*s_3*s_1, \{s_1, s_3\}, \{s_3\}, 1],$
240	$[s_2*s_3*s_1, \{s_1, s_3\}, \{s_1, s_3\}, 1].$
242	$[s1*s2*s3, \{s3, s2\}, \{\}, 1].$
243	$[s1*s2*s3, \{s3, s2\}, \{s3\}, 1],$
244	[s3*s1, {s2}, {}, 1]],
245	27)
246	<pre>sage: multiplicitytot(W,s2*s3)</pre>
247	([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1],
248	[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
249	[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {}, 1],
250	[s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}, {s2}, 1],
251	[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {}, 1],
252	[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3}, {s3}, 1],
253	[s2*s3*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
254	[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {}, 1],
255	$[s2*s3*s1*s2, \{s1, s3\}, \{s3\}, 1],$
256	LSI*SZ*S3*SI, (S3), (}, 1],
257	LSI*SZ*S3*SZ, 1SZJ, 1J, [a1*a2*a2*a2 [a2] [a2] 1]
258	LSITSZTSJTSZ, ISZJ, ISZJ, IJ, [a0xa2xa1
259	LOLTOUTOI, LOI, DOJ, LJ, IJ, [c9*c3*c9
260	[04700704, [01], [[, 1], [s1*s2*s3 {s3 s2} {} 1]
201	[51*52*50, [50, 52], [], 1], [s1*s2*s3 {s3 s7} {s7} 1]
202	[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[

```
[s2*s3, {s1, s3}, {}, 1]],
263
264
           17)
     sage: multiplicitytot(W,s3*s2)
265
        ([[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {}, {}, 1]
[s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1}, {}, 1],
                                                    1],
266
267
           [s2*s3*s1*s2*s1, {s1},
                                             {s1}, 1],
268
           [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, \{s2\}, \{\}, 1],
269
           [s1*s2*s3*s2*s1, {s2}],
                                             {s2},
                                                      1],
270
           [s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3},
[s1*s2*s3*s1*s2, {s3},
271
                                             {},
                                                   1],
                                             {s3}, 1],
272
           [s3*s1*s2*s1, \{s2\}, \{\}, 1],
273
           [s2*s3*s2*s1, \{s1\}, \{\}, 1],
274
           [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3},
[s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3},
                                              {}, 1],
{s1}, 1],
275
276
           [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1,
                                       s3}, {s3}, 1],
277
           [s2*s3*s1*s2, {s1, s3}, {s
[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {}, 1]
[s1*s2*s3*s2, {s2}, {s2}, {s2}, {s2},
278
                                       s3}, {s1, s3}, 1],
                                              1],
279
280
                                                  1],
           [s3*s2*s1, \{s1, s2\}, \{\}, 1],
281
           [s3*s1*s2, {s2}, {}, 1],
[s2*s3*s2, {s1}, {}, 1],
282
283
           [s3*s2, {s1, s2}, {}, 1]],
284
           19)
285
```

A.2 Distribution types

We list the distribution types of all Jordan-Hölder factors that appear in Example
3.33

Example a):

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_B^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_1} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{2\},\{2,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{2\},\{1,2\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_1}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
	Continued on next page

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_3}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\left(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\left(L(s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\left(L(s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,2}})$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{2}}^{P_{1,2}})$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G(L(s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_1}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_3}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G \Big(L(s_1 s_2 s_3 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{2,3}}\Big)$	$\bigl(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\}\bigr)$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G \Big(L(s_1 s_2 s_3 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{2,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_1}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}^G_{P_{2,3}}\Big(L(s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}^G_{P_{2,3}}\Big(L(s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),v^{P_{2,3}}_{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\left(L(s_{3}s_{2}\cdot\lambda), v_{B}^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{\overline{G}}\left(L(s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$({\overline{1}}, {0, 1}, {0, 0}, {0})$
	Continued on next page

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{2}s_{3}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{1,3}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}^G_{P_{2,3}}\Big(L(s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\Big(L(s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\Big(L(s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$v^G_B(\lambda)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$

Example b):

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_B^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{2\},\{2,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{2\},\{1,2\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_1}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_3}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\left(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
Co	ontinued on next page

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G \left(L(s_1 s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_3} \right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\left(L(s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,2}})$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\left(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{2}}^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G(L(s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G \Big(L(s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_2} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G \left(L(s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), 1 \right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,3}})$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda),1\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\left(L(s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\left(L(s_1s_2s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G(L(s_1s_2s_3\cdot\lambda), v_{P_3}^{P_{2,3}})$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G(L(s_1s_2s_3\cdot\lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{2,3}})$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\left(L(s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G \Big(L(s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{2,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\left(L(s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G(L(s_3s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{1,2}})$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{2}s_{3}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\left(L(s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1\},\{0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\left(L(s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$
$v_B^G(\lambda)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0\},\{0\})$

Example c):

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_B^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\left(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G \Big(L(s_1 s_2 s_3 s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_2} \Big)$	$(\{2\},\{2,1,2\},\{2,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}s_{2}\cdot\lambda), v_{B}^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{2\},\{1,2,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_1}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_3}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_3}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_3}^G \Big(L(s_1 s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_3} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\Big(L(s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\Big(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,2}}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^{G}\left(L(s_{3}s_{2}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{2}}^{P_{1,2}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G\Big(L(s_3s_2s_1\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_3s_1s_2\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_3s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{1}}^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\overline{\{1\}}, \{1, 0, 1\}, \{1, 0\})$
C	ontinued on next page

Jordan-Hölder factor	Distribution type
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{2}s_{3}s_{1}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \left(L(s_2 s_3 s_1 \cdot \lambda), 1 \right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_1}^G\Big(L(s_2s_3s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_1}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3}\cdot\lambda), v_{B}^{P_{2,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,1\},\{1,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G}\left(L(s_{1}s_{2}s_{3}\cdot\lambda), v_{P_{3}}^{P_{2,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G \Big(L(s_1 s_2 s_3 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{2,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\Big(L(s_1s_2s_3\cdot\lambda),1\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0,1\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2s_1\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_2 s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_1}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G\left(L(s_1s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{1,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_1 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{2,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_2}^G\Big(L(s_1s_3\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_2}\Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,1\},\{1,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G \Big(L(s_3 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{1,2}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G \Big(L(s_3 s_2 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_2}^{P_{1,2}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G \Big(L(s_2 s_3 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,1\},\{0,1\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^{G} \Big(L(s_2 s_3 \cdot \lambda), v_{P_3}^{P_{1,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0,1\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{2,3}}^G \Big(L(s_1 \cdot \lambda), v_B^{P_{2,3}} \Big)$	$(\{1\},\{1,0,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,3}}^G\left(L(s_2\cdot\lambda), v_B^{P_{1,3}}\right)$	$(\{1\},\{0,1,0\},\{0,0\})$
$\mathcal{F}_{P_{1,2}}^G(\overline{L(s_3\cdot\lambda),v_B^{P_{1,2}}})$	$(\{1\},\{0,0,1\},\{0,0\})$
$v^G_B(\lambda)$	$(\{1\},\{0,0,0\},\{0,0\})$

References

- H. H. Andersen and N. Lauritzen. "Twisted Verma modules". In: Studies in memory of Issai Schur (Chevaleret/Rehovot, 2000). Vol. 210. Progr. Math. Birkhäuser Boston, Boston, MA, 2003, pp. 1–26.
- [2] C. Bănică and O. Stănăşilă. Algebraic methods in the global theory of complex spaces. Translated from the Romanian. Editura Academiei, Bucharest; John Wiley & Sons, London-New York-Sydney, 1976, p. 296.
- [3] A. Beilinson and J. Bernstein. "Localisation de g-modules". In: C. R. Acad. Sci. Paris Sér. I Math. 292.1 (1981), pp. 15–18.
- [4] S. C. Billey, M. Konvalinka, T. K. Petersen, W. Slofstra, and B. E. Tenner. "Parabolic double cosets in Coxeter groups". In: *Electron. J. Combin.* 25.1 (2018), Paper No. 1.23, 66.
- [5] B. D. Boe. "Homomorphisms between generalized Verma modules". In: Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 288.2 (1985), pp. 791–799.
- [6] A. Borel. *Linear algebraic groups*. Second. Vol. 126. Graduate Texts in Mathematics. Springer-Verlag, New York, 1991, pp. xii+288.
- [7] S. Bosch, U. Güntzer, and R. Remmert. Non-Archimedean analysis. Vol. 261. Grundlehren der mathematischen Wissenschaften [Fundamental Principles of Mathematical Sciences]. A systematic approach to rigid analytic geometry. Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 1984, pp. xii+436.
- [8] J.-L. Brylinski. "Differential operators on the flag varieties". In: Young tableaux and Schur functors in algebra and geometry (Toruń, 1980). Vol. 87. Astérisque. Soc. Math. France, Paris, 1981, pp. 43–60.
- J.-L. Brylinski and M. Kashiwara. "Kazhdan-Lusztig conjecture and holonomic systems". In: *Invent. Math.* 64.3 (1981), pp. 387–410.
- [10] C. J. Bushnell and G. Henniart. *The local Langlands conjecture for* GL(2). Vol. 335. Grundlehren der mathematischen Wissenschaften [Fundamental Principles of Mathematical Sciences]. Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 2006, pp. xii+347.
- [11] P. Colmez, G. Dospinescu, J. Hauseux, and W. Nizioł. "p-adic étale cohomology of period domains". In: Math. Ann. 381.1-2 (2021), pp. 105–180.
- [12] J.-F. Dat, S. Orlik, and M. Rapoport. Period domains over finite and p-adic fields. Vol. 183. Cambridge Tracts in Mathematics. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 2010, pp. xxii+372.
- [13] R. Frassek, I. Karpov, and A. Tsymbaliuk. *Transfer matrices of rational spin chains via novel BGG-type resolutions*. 2021. URL: https://arxiv.org/abs/2112.12065.
- [14] R. Godement. Topologie algébrique et théorie des faisceaux. Publications de l'Institut de Mathématique de l'Université de Strasbourg, XIII. Troisième édition revue et corrigée. Hermann, Paris, 1973, pp. viii+283.
- [15] P. A. Griffiths. "Periods of integrals on algebraic manifolds. I. Construction and properties of the modular varieties". In: Amer. J. Math. 90 (1968), pp. 568–626.
- [16] P. A. Griffiths. "Periods of integrals on algebraic manifolds. II. Local study of the period mapping". In: Amer. J. Math. 90 (1968), pp. 805–865.

- [17] A. Grothendieck. Cohomologie locale des faisceaux cohérents et théorèmes de Lefschetz locaux et globaux (SGA 2). Vol. 4. Documents Mathématiques (Paris) [Mathematical Documents (Paris)]. Séminaire de Géométrie Algébrique du Bois Marie, 1962, Augmenté d'un exposé de Michèle Raynaud. [With an exposé by Michèle Raynaud], With a preface and edited by Yves Laszlo, Revised reprint of the 1968 French original. Société Mathématique de France, Paris, 2005, pp. x+208.
- [18] A. Grothendieck. "Éléments de géométrie algébrique. III. Étude cohomologique des faisceaux cohérents. I". In: Inst. Hautes Études Sci. Publ. Math. 11 (1961), p. 167.
- [19] R. Hartshorne. Local cohomology. Lecture Notes in Mathematics, No. 41. A seminar given by A. Grothendieck, Harvard University, Fall, 1961. Springer-Verlag, Berlin-New York, 1967, pp. vi+106.
- [20] R. Huber. Étale cohomology of rigid analytic varieties and adic spaces. Aspects of Mathematics, E30. Friedr. Vieweg & Sohn, Braunschweig, 1996, pp. x+450.
- [21] J. E. Humphreys. Introduction to Lie algebras and representation theory. Graduate Texts in Mathematics, Vol. 9. Springer-Verlag, New York-Berlin, 1972, pp. xii+169.
- J. E. Humphreys. Representations of semisimple Lie algebras in the BGG category
 Vol. 94. Graduate Studies in Mathematics. American Mathematical Society, Providence, RI, 2008, pp. xvi+289.
- [23] J. C. Jantzen. Representations of algebraic groups. Vol. 131. Pure and Applied Mathematics. Academic Press, Inc., Boston, MA, 1987, pp. xiv+443.
- [24] C. U. Jensen. Les foncteurs dérivés de lim et leurs applications en théorie des modules. Lecture Notes in Mathematics, Vol. 254. Springer-Verlag, Berlin-New York, 1972, pp. iv+103.
- [25] M. Kashiwara and N. Lauritzen. "Local cohomology and *D*-affinity in positive characteristic". In: C. R. Math. Acad. Sci. Paris 335.12 (2002), pp. 993–996.
- [26] G. Kempf. "The Grothendieck-Cousin complex of an induced representation". In: Adv. in Math. 29.3 (1978), pp. 310–396.
- [27] A. Knutson. Automatically reduced degenerations of automatically normal varieties. 2007. URL: https://arxiv.org/abs/0709.3999.
- [28] R. E. Kottwitz. "Isocrystals with additional structure". In: Compositio Math. 56.2 (1985), pp. 201–220.
- [29] R. E. Kottwitz. "Isocrystals with additional structure. II". In: Compositio Math. 109.3 (1997), pp. 255–339.
- [30] R. E. Kottwitz. "Shimura varieties and twisted orbital integrals". In: Math. Ann. 269.3 (1984), pp. 287–300.
- [31] M. Kuschkowitz. "Rigid cohomology of Drinfeld's upper half space over a finite field". In: Math. Z. 289.1-2 (2018), pp. 279–308.
- [32] J. Lepowsky. "A generalization of the Bernstein-Gelfand-Gelfand resolution". In: J. Algebra 49.2 (1977), pp. 496–511.
- [33] J. Lepowsky. "Generalized Verma modules, the Cartan-Helgason theorem, and the Harish-Chandra homomorphism". In: J. Algebra 49.2 (1977), pp. 470–495.

- [34] G. Lusztig and J. Tits. "The inverse of a Cartan matrix". In: An. Univ. Timişoara Ser. Ştiinţ. Mat. 30.1 (1992), pp. 17–23.
- [35] G. Malle and D. Testerman. Linear algebraic groups and finite groups of Lie type. Vol. 133. Cambridge Studies in Advanced Mathematics. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 2011, pp. xiv+309.
- [36] D. Mumford, J. Fogarty, and F. Kirwan. Geometric invariant theory. Third. Vol. 34. Ergebnisse der Mathematik und ihrer Grenzgebiete (2) [Results in Mathematics and Related Areas (2)]. Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 1994, pp. xiv+292.
- [37] M. Murray and J. Rice. "A geometric realisation of the Lepowsky Bernstein Gelfand Gelfand resolution". In: Proc. Amer. Math. Soc. 114.2 (1992), pp. 553–559.
- [38] S. Orlik. "Equivariant vector bundles on Drinfeld's halfspace over a finite field". In: arXiv preprint arXiv:2112.00687 (2021).
- [39] S. Orlik. "Equivariant vector bundles on Drinfeld's upper half space". In: Invent. Math. 172.3 (2008), pp. 585–656.
- [40] S. Orlik. "Kohomologie von Periodenbereichen über endlichen Körpern". In: J. Reine Angew. Math. 528 (2000), pp. 201–233.
- [41] S. Orlik. "The cohomology of period domains for reductive groups over local fields". In: *Invent. Math.* 162.3 (2005), pp. 523–549.
- [42] S. Orlik. "The pro-étale cohomology of Drinfeld's upper half space". In: Doc. Math. 26 (2021), pp. 1395–1421.
- [43] S. Orlik and B. Schraen. "The Jordan-Hölder series of the locally analytic Steinberg representation". In: Doc. Math. 19 (2014), pp. 647–671.
- [44] S. Orlik and M. Strauch. "On Jordan-Hölder series of some locally analytic representations". In: J. Amer. Math. Soc. 28.1 (2015), pp. 99–157.
- [45] N. Perrin. "Courbes rationnelles sur les variétés homogènes". In: Ann. Inst. Fourier (Grenoble) 52.1 (2002), pp. 105–132.
- [46] K. Pohlkamp. Randwerte holomorpher Funktionen auf p-adischen symmetrischen Räumen. Diplomarbeit Universität Münster. 2004.
- [47] M. van der Put. "Serre duality for rigid analytic spaces". In: Indag. Math. (N.S.) 3.2 (1992), pp. 219–235.
- [48] M. Rapoport. "Period domains over finite and local fields". In: Algebraic geometry— Santa Cruz 1995. Vol. 62. Proc. Sympos. Pure Math. Amer. Math. Soc., Providence, RI, 1997, pp. 361–381.
- [49] M. Rapoport and M. Richartz. "On the classification and specialization of Fisocrystals with additional structure". In: Compositio Math. 103.2 (1996), pp. 153– 181.
- [50] M. Rapoport and E. Viehmann. "Towards a theory of local Shimura varieties". In: Münster J. Math. 7.1 (2014), pp. 273–326.
- [51] M. Rapoport and Th. Zink. Period spaces for p-divisible groups. Vol. 141. Annals of Mathematics Studies. Princeton University Press, Princeton, NJ, 1996, pp. xxii+324.

- [52] J. W. Rice. "Cousin complexes and resolutions of representations". In: The Penrose transform and analytic cohomology in representation theory (South Hadley, MA, 1992). Vol. 154. Contemp. Math. Amer. Math. Soc., Providence, RI, 1993, pp. 197– 215.
- [53] Schémas en groupes. III: Structure des schémas en groupes réductifs. Lecture Notes in Mathematics, Vol. 153. Séminaire de Géométrie Algébrique du Bois Marie 1962/64 (SGA 3), Dirigé par M. Demazure et A. Grothendieck. Springer-Verlag, Berlin-New York, 1970, pp. viii+529.
- [54] P. Schneider. Nonarchimedean functional analysis. Springer Monographs in Mathematics. Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 2002, pp. vi+156.
- [55] P. Schneider and U. Stuhler. "The cohomology of *p*-adic symmetric spaces". In: *Invent. Math.* 105.1 (1991), pp. 47–122.
- [56] P. Schneider and J. Teitelbaum. "p-adic boundary values". In: 278. Cohomologies p-adiques et applications arithmétiques, I. 2002, pp. 51–125.
- [57] P. Schneider and J. Teitelbaum. "Locally analytic distributions and p-adic representation theory, with applications to GL₂". In: J. Amer. Math. Soc. 15.2 (2002), pp. 443–468.
- [58] T. A. Springer. *Linear algebraic groups.* second. Modern Birkhäuser Classics. Birkhäuser Boston, Inc., Boston, MA, 2009, pp. xvi+334.
- [59] B. Totaro. "Tensor products in p-adic Hodge theory". In: Duke Math. J. 83.1 (1996), pp. 79–104.